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MEDCO

LEGISLATIVE PURPOSE

The Maryland Economic Development Corporation (MEDCO) operates under the provisions of Title 10,
Subtitle 1 of the Economic Development Article of the Annotated Code of Maryland.

MEDCO’s legislative purposes are to relieve unemployment in the State; encourage an increase of business
activity and commerce and a balanced economy; help retain and attract business activity and commerce;
promote economic development; and promote the health, safety, right of gainful employment, and welfare
of residents of Maryland.

The General Assembly intends that MEDCO operate and exercise its corporate powers in all areas of the
State to assist governmental units and State and local economic development agencies to contribute to the
expansion, modernization, and retention of existing enterprises in the State, as well as attraction of new
business to the State; cooperate with workforce investment boards, private industry councils,
representatives of labor, and governmental units in maximizing new economic opportunities for residents
of the State; and accomplish at least one of its legislative purposes and complement existing State marketing
and financial assistance programs by owning projects, leasing projects to other persons, or lending the
proceeds of bonds to other persons to finance the cost of acquiring or improving projects.

CORPORATE OVERVIEW

MEDCO is staffed with twelve full-time employees. MEDCO regularly meets with public/private economic
development partners, residents, businesses, and prospective new businesses to address their needs for
advisory services, construction, financing, real estate and project development assistance. A significant
portion of MEDCQO’s responsibilities include providing project management, compliance and oversight
services. MEDCO monitors its projects’ compliance with provisions of financing documents to ensure that
current financial statements are available, required benchmarks are achieved, and appropriate insurance
requirements are met. MEDCO also collects and reviews financials of MEDCO-owned projects.

MEDCO structures its bond financings on a non-recourse basis. Repayment of MEDCO issued bonds is
limited to the revenues and resources of the applicable project; neither MEDCO nor the State of Maryland
or any of its agencies is responsible for the repayment of MEDCO issued bonds.

Additional information regarding MEDCO’s services, projects, annual audited financials, current projects,
Board Members, and Board Meeting Schedule can be found at www.medco-corp.com.
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MEDCO 2022: Year in Perspective

The past year has been a time of transition at MEDCO — with the introduction of new leadership; the
development and implementation of an inaugural strategic plan; and most significantly, the state’s
emergence from the global pandemic amidst inflationary forces which have had a significant impact on
MEDCO projects.

Unlike the two most recent years, 2022 saw a return to more normal operations at Maryland’s higher
education institutions, where MEDCO owns and manages numerous student housing projects. Most of
MEDCQO’s projects remain over 85% occupied, with half at full occupancy. In the past year, no significant
public health-related emergencies or other incidents triggered access restrictions to MEDCO’s student
housing facilities. During the most-recent legislative assembly in Annapolis, MEDCO worked closely with
the Maryland General Assembly on the passage of HB 385/SB 560, which clarified language in MEDCO’s
student housing leases and rental agreements, as well as the rights of students who occupy MEDCO-owned
student housing projects. This important step recognized difficulties and confusion experienced during the
pandemic and will assure maximum transparency and service to students and families into the future.

As a result of renewed awareness of the organization’s capabilities, MEDCO was asked to participate in
several important legislative economic development initiatives. As an example, SB 291 afforded state
capital grant resources to MEDCO to facilitate development of Secured Compartmentalized Information
Facilities (SCIF) laboratories in Southern Maryland. This initiative will drive innovation and industry
activity related to military operations in that region. Further, HB 897 engaged MEDCO with horse industry
stakeholders to assess the feasibility of acquiring and improving conditions at Laurel Park for the benefit
of Maryland’s horse racing, breeding and training industries.

MEDCO also partnered with the Maryland Department of Commerce, the University of Maryland, and
Deloitte Consulting to begin work to develop an Unmanned Autonomous Systems (UAS)/Advanced Air
Mobility Industry Engagement Strategy. This effort will leverage government and higher education assets
in Southern Maryland and throughout the state to establish a new center of excellence and related facilities
to grow this critical industry sector.

In 2022, MEDCO closed or initiated projects with state, local or municipal government partners aimed at
facilitating major infrastructure improvements. MEDCO also teamed with local economic development
organizations, workforce investment boards, and other community partners in pursuit of federal grant
assistance to advance several key economic development initiatives, ranging from new cyber workforce
development programs, quantum innovation centers and enhancement of regional transportation services.

After seventeen years of service, Robert “Bob” Brennan retired on August 2, 2021. Following a competitive
search, J. Thomas “Tom” Sadowski was chosen as MEDCO’s fourth Executive Director. Tom came to
MEDCO with over thirty years’ experience in economic development, most recently serving for five years
as vice chancellor for economic development at the University System of Maryland, a major driver of
Maryland’s economic success. Tom connected immediately with key public/private stakeholders to
reintroduce MEDCO and determine how MEDCO could be more proactive in helping achieve their strategic
goals and objectives. Further, in close coordination with the MEDCO board of directors, Tom developed
the organization’s first strategic plan. This plan further focused MEDCO’s efforts and resources to better
accomplish the following:

e Target industry development, working more strategically with the Maryland Department of
Commerce to help grow the State of Maryland’s economy in areas of high economic potential and
return
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e Innovation capacity development, partnering with Maryland’s federal facilities and higher education
institutions to enhance Maryland’s economic competitiveness and overall performance

e Support inclusive and equitable economic growth, working with state and local partners to address
their goals and the needs of underserved populations and their communities

e Strategic placemaking, utilizing MEDCO’s full capabilities to provide the right infrastructure,
development and amenities to facilitate sustainable, transformative and equitable economic growth
statewide

With this refined strategic focus, MEDCO staff has continued to support, manage, and help plan numerous
economic development initiatives on behalf of communities, non-profits and public/private-sector partners
throughout Maryland.




MEDCO

BOND FINANCED PROJECTS IN FY 2022

MEDCO’s bond financed projects encourage business growth, , relieve unemployment, promote the welfare
of State residents, and generally foster economic development in Maryland. For the fiscal year ending June
30, 2022, MEDCO provided bond financing for the following projects:

Maryland Science Center Project Series 2021

$4,250,000
Maryland Economic Development Corporation Revenue Refunding Bonds (Maryland Science Center
Project) Series 2021
= Interest Rate: Variable equal to the sum of the greater of the product of 80% of LIBOR or
0.00% plus 192 basis points or as of the Benchmark Replacement Date, the Benchmark
Replacement (based upon SOFR)
= Longest Maturity: April 1, 2033

On November 30, 2021, MEDCO issued its non-recourse, tax-exempt bonds to (a) refund the
outstanding principal balance of the MEDCO Variable Rate Economic Development Revenue Bonds
(Maryland Science Center Project) Series 2003 the proceeds of which were used for the expansion and
renovation of the Maryland Science Center and (b) pay cost of issuance and other transaction costs.

Blind Industries and Services of Maryland Series 2021
$3,375,000

Maryland Economic Development Corporation Revenue Refunding Bonds (Blind Industries and
Services of Maryland Project) Series 2021

= Interest Rate: 3.54%
= Longest Maturity: January 1, 2047

On December 29, 2021, MEDCO issued its non-recourse, tax-exempt bonds to (a) refund the
outstanding principal balance of the MEDCO Variable Rate Economic Development Revenue Bonds
(Blind Industries and Services of Maryland Project) Series 2003 the proceeds of which were used for
the acquisition, construction and renovation of manufacturing and office facilities located as 2012
Hammonds Ferry Road (now known as 3345 Washington Boulevard and (b) pay cost of issuance and
other transaction costs.

929 N. Wolfe Street LLC Project Series 2022A (Tax-Exempt) and 2022B
(Taxable)

$69,990,000

Maryland Economic Development Corporation Student Housing Revenue Bonds (929 N. Wolfe
Street LLC Project) Series 2022A (Tax-Exempt) and 2022B (Taxable)

= Interest Rate: 4.30%
= Longest Maturity: Series 2022A - January 1, 2060; Series 2022B — January 1, 2029
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On January 31, 2022, MEDCO issued its non-recourse tax-exempt bonds to finance or refinance (a)
the acquisition of the membership interests in 929 N. Wolfe Street LLC and refund the outstanding
MEDCO Student Housing Revenue Bonds (929 North Wolfe Street, LLC Project) Series 2014A and
MEDCO Student Housing Revenue Bonds (929 North Wolfe Street, LLC Project) Series 2014B-1, (b)
payment of all or a portion of (i) a termination fee with respect to an interest rate swap, (ii) past-due
accounts payable, (iii) certain other necessary or useful capital improvements on or adjoining the
property (iv) the payment of certain past due contractual payment obligations with respect to the
project, (v) the repayment of certain advances made to cover project shortfalls and (vi) certain costs of
issuance and (c) funding of certain reserve funds.

The proceeds of the Series 2014 Bonds were used to finance or refinance (i) the acquisition of, use and
occupancy rights with respect to, a parcel of land located at 929 N. Wolfe Street, together with
improvements, equipment and other assets and property thereon (the Property), (ii) the acquisition,
constructions, installation and equipping of a graduate student housing facility on the Property, (iii)
certain other necessary and useful capital improvements and expenditures on or adjoining the Property
and (iv) certain costs relating to the issuance of such bonds, the funding of certain reserve funds and
other related eligible costs.

Purple Line Light Rail Project Series 2022A (Green Bonds) and Series 2022B
(Green Bonds)

$643,455,000
Maryland Economic Development Corporation (Purple Line Light Rial Project) Private Activity
Revenue Bonds (RSA) Series 2022A (Green Bonds) and Series 2022B (Green Bonds)

= Interest Rate: 5.00% - 5.25%
= Longest Maturity: Series 2022A - November 12, 2028; Series 2022B June 30, 2055

On April 14, 2022, MEDCO issued its non-recourse, tax-exempt bonds to finance (i) certain costs of
developing, designing, constructing and equipping the approximately 16-mile light rail project known
as the Purple Line Light Rail Project, (ii) all or a portion of the costs incidental to the issuance of the
2022 Bonds, (iii) interest on the 2022 Bonds during construction and (iv) the funding of any
necessary reserves to secure the 2022 Bonds.

Morgan State University Refunding Bonds Series 2022

$21,145,000

Maryland Economic Development Corporation Senior Student Housing Refunding Revenue Bonds
(Morgan State University Project) Series 2022

= [Interest Rate: 5.00%
= Longest Maturity: July 1, 2028

On April 28, 2022, MEDCO issued its non-recourse, tax-exempt bonds to (a) refund the outstanding
principal balance of the MEDCO Student Housing Refunding Revenue Bonds (Morgan State
University Project) Series 2012 (the 2012 Bonds), (b) fund a deposit to the Debt Service Reserve
Fund and (c) pay cost of issuance and other transaction costs. The proceeds of the 2012 Bonds were
used to refund the MEDCO Senior Student Housing Revenue Bonds (Morgan State University
Project) Series 2002A the proceeds of which were used to construct and equip the 794-bed student
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housing facility known as Morgan View Apartments located on 9.84 acres adjacent to the University
campus owned by the State of Maryland for use by Morgan State University.

Catholic Relief Services Bonds Series 2022
$19,555,000
Maryland Economic Development Corporation Economic Development Refunding Revenue Bonds
(Catholic Relief Services Facility) Series 2022
= Interest Rate: Variable — equal to the sum of (i) 80% of Daily SOFR plus (ii) sixty four (64)
basis points
= Longest Maturity: May 1, 2036

On May 2, 2022, MEDCO issued its non-recourse, tax-exempt bonds to (a) refund the outstanding
principal balance of the MEDCO Variable Rate Economic Development Revenue Bond (Catholic
Relief Services Facility) Series 2006 the proceeds of which were used for the tenant improvements
to a portion of 228 West Lexington Street and (b) pay cost of issuance and other transaction costs.
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STUDENT HOUSING PROJECTS

MEDCO provides assistance to Maryland’s higher education entities through bond financing and ownership
of student housing projects, enabling Maryland’s higher education entities to attract and house students
without adversely affecting their State-mandated debt capacities.

MEDCO assumes project ownership of student housing projects by way of ground leases that terminate
contemporaneously with the repayment of the MEDCO-issued bonds used to finance the project. Upon
repayment of the bonds, ownership reverts to the ground lessor.

The following are the outstanding balances as of June 30, 2022, of the MEDCO bonds that financed student
housing projects:

Projects that revert to the University System of Maryland upon repayment :

Bowie State University (Christa Towson University, Baltimore County
McAuliffe Center), Prince George’s County $36,045,000 - 1,088 beds

$11,900,000 - 460 beds University of Maryland, Baltimore,
Bowie State University (Entrepreneurship Baltimore City - $22,415,000 - 337 beds
Living Learning Center), Prince George's University of Maryland, Baltimore
County — $44,915,000 — 557 beds County, Baltimore County - $14,970,000 -
Frostburg State University, Allegany 578 beds

County - $10,590,000 - 406 beds University of Maryland, College Park,
Salisbury University, Wicomico County - Prince George’s County - $109,185,000 -
$16,220,000 - 890 beds 2,899 beds

Projects that revert to Capitol Technology University Foundation upon repayment:
Capitol Technology University, Prince George’s County - $12,268,525- 222 beds

Projects that revert to Morgan State University upon repayment:
Morgan State University (Morgan View), Baltimore City - $21,145,000 - 794 beds
Morgan State University (Thurgood Marshall Hall), 5a/timore City — $80,825,000 — 670 beds*

* opened in August 2022

Projects that revert to Sheppard Pratt Health Systems upon repayment:
University Village at Sheppard Pratt, Baltimore County - $15,365,000 - 615 beds
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PORTFOLIO PROJECT UPDATES

MEDCO assists governmental units and state and local economic development agencies by providing
coordination of capital improvements and operational management support.

National Cybersecurity Center of Excellence (NCCOE)

The NCCoE, a program dedicated to furthering innovation through the rapid identification, integration,
and adoption of practical cybersecurity solutions, was established in 2012 through a partnership and
Memorandum of Understanding between the National Institute of Standards and Technologies (NIST),
the Maryland Department of Commerce (Commerce), and Montgomery County’s Department of
Economic Development (Montgomery County). In 2013, Commerce and Montgomery County
requested MEDCQO’s assistance to redevelop a 57,000 square foot Shady Grove biology and
information technology facility, located at 9700 Great Seneca Highway, Rockville, to accommodate
an off-campus facility for the NCCoE. To complete the project, MEDCO worked with Montgomery
County to amend certain agreements for the facility, engage an architecture firm to create a
redevelopment plan, secure redevelopment funding, and oversee the facility’s redevelopment. In
December 2015 MEDCO completed the approximately $11,000,000 renovation.

The NCCoE is part of the NIST Information Technology Laboratory and operates in close collaboration
with NIST’s Computer Security Division. The NCCoE integrates commercially available technologies
to build practical cybersecurity solutions that can be rapidly applied to real challenges facing
businesses. The off-campus facility is used to attract private companies to collaborate on advanced,
innovative solutions for private sector cybersecurity needs.

In early 2021, MEDCO and Montgomery County finalized the transfer of land and property (including
the facility) from MEDCO to Montgomery County by way of terminating an existing ground lease and
assigning the facility to Montgomery County. MEDCO transferred its interest in the existing license
agreement by and between MEDCO and NIST to Montgomery County as part of the transfer of land
and property ownership. For the benefit of Montgomery County and NCCoE, MEDCO continues to
manage the facility and coordinate capital improvements and repairs with NIST through a management
agreement with Montgomery County.

Since the completion of renovations, MEDCO, in coordination with NIST, has continued to support
the facility by providing ongoing operational management services and capital improvements,

including:
= Major upgrade to one of the data » Landscaping improvements (2020 —
rooms, nearly doubling the facility’s 2021)
data stfqrgge and computing = Reevaluation of and new agreements
capabilities (2017) with HVAC and fire suppression
= Upgrades to the building’s exterior vendor (2021)
lighting and parking lot (2018) = Reviewing and evaluating Generator
replacement and parking lot repairs
(2022)

Maryland State Archives

In 2014, MEDCO issued its non-recourse, tax-exempt revenue bonds in the amount of $9,200,000 and
used the bond proceeds, along with $2,300,000 of MEDCO funds, to acquire approximately 5.9 acres
in Baltimore County located at 2255 Rolling Run Drive, Woodlawn, which contained a 134,240 square
foot building previously used by the Social Security Administration for records retention. The facility
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is leased to the Maryland State Archives (MSA), which uses the property for specialty storage units,
State records, artistic property, and data management devices. Through the Project, MSA has been able
to consolidate its operations from three separate leased facilities, while benefitting from the building’s
environmental controls.

MEDCO owns the Project and entered into an Intergovernmental Lease Agreement with MSA for an
initial fifteen-year term with the option to renew for up to two additional ten-year terms. MSA makes
monthly payments to MEDCO, as required by the Lease, which repay the outstanding debt service and
MEDCQ’s contribution. In addition to Lease Payments, MSA pays operating expenses associated with
the Project.

MEDCO continues to make renovations to the Project to improve and accommodate MSA’s archival
storage, restoration, and preservation efforts, including:

= Overhaul of the HVAC system, = Painted exterior envelope of the
including roof top cooling units building (2017)
(2017) =  Upgraded interior lighting system to
= New roofing system (2017) more energy efficient LEDs (2018)
= Addition of a back-up generator = Reevaluated and signed new HVAC
(2017) and fire suppression vendor (2020)
= Reconfiguration and refinishing two = Updated the facilities Server and
stories of office space (2017) Firewall protection through CAS
Severn (2021)

= Installation of specialty signage
(2017)

Maryland State Health Lab, Department of Health Building

In 2011 MEDCO issued its non-recourse, tax-exempt revenue bonds in the amount of $170,910,000
and used the bond proceeds to acquire a parcel in Baltimore City formerly known as 1746 Ashland
Avenue, and to build an approximately 235,000 square foot, state-of-the-art public health laboratory
for the State of Maryland’s Department of Health. As stated above, the Series 2021 bonds were issued
on April 30, 2021 to refund the 2011 Bonds to achieve debt service savings. The project enabled the
Department of Health to expand its services, move labs from outdated facilities, and provide
infrastructure resiliencies and redundancies necessary to maintain Center for Disease Control
credentials. The project is used by the Department of Health for various health-related activities and
other critical lab testing essential for public health.

MEDCO owns the project and entered into a Lease Agreement with the Department of Health for an
initial twenty-year term with the option to renew for three subsequent, but immediately consecutive
additional ten-year periods. The Department of Health makes monthly lease payments to MEDCO,
which pay for operating expenses for the building, as well as an annual debt service payment for the
MEDCO-issued bonds.

MEDCO continues to accommodate the Department of Health’s ongoing operations by holding and
coordinating various contracts for the building, including:

» Facilities management contract with " Security and building automation
a third-party vendor system contracts with a third-party
vendor

11
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» Telecommunications and internet *  Window warranty replacement
service contracts efforts

University of Maryland, College Park Energy Project

In 2001 MEDCO issued bonds for the University of Maryland, College Park Energy Project to
construct, acquire, improve, and operate certain heating, cooling, electric distribution, and electric
generating facilities on the campus of the University of Maryland, College Park (UMCP) as part of a
program to provide steam, electricity, and chilled water services throughout campus. The 2001 Bonds
were refunded in 2011 through the issuance of additional bonds (2011 Bonds). The UMCP Energy
Project is primarily comprised of a central utility plant with two steam boilers and four satellite central
utility buildings throughout the UMCP campus. Throughout the life of the Bonds, MEDCO retained
ownership of the project pursuant to a Ground Lease with the University System of Maryland (USM),
in addition to operating and funding improvements to the utility infrastructure program.

The 2011 Bonds were paid off in July 2019 and, MEDCO continues to manage the project pursuant to
the original project ground lease, an Interim Management, Operation, and Maintenance Agreement
between MEDCO and College Park Energy, LLC, as well as an Interim Energy System Services
Agreement between MEDCO and UMCP. MEDCQ'’s current role at the project is to oversee annual
audited financials, coordinate third party engineering reviews of key repairs and replacements,
managing the operator’s contract to manage and operate the plant, and working as a liaison between
UMCEP and College Park Energy, LLC.

OTHER FINANCED PROJECTS

Maryland Center for Construction Education and Innovation

In September 2016, MEDCO extended a one-time bridge loan to the Maryland Center for Construction
Education and Innovation (MCCEI), an industry-led workforce intermediary established to create a
world-class education system for Maryland’s construction industry. The bridge loan, not exceeding
$200,000, bears interest at 4% on the outstanding loan amount. MCCEI utilizes the funding to support
its operational goals of ensuring Maryland’s education system meets construction industry demand;
raising awareness of career opportunities in construction; creating a new paradigm for construction
professionals at all education levels; and creating a network for Maryland’s fragmented construction
industry to include training, education, and other resources for career seekers, training providers, the
industry, and governmental leaders. As of June 30, 2022, the MCCEI loan had an outstanding principal
balance of $75,000.

Firefly Farms

On August 20, 2019, MEDCO purchased 1,000 shares of preferred stock at the value of $100.00 per
share from FireFly Farms, Inc., a Maryland corporation. Firefly Farms, located in Garrett County,
Maryland, produces handmade goat cheese without the use of additives, preservatives, or stabilizers.
Firefly Farms sources all its goat milk from family farms within 30-miles of the creamery. With equity
investment, Firefly Farms will finance the cost of product development, working capital, and
acquisition or leasing of capital improvements with growth and expansion plans to add additional retail
locations and employees. As of June 30, 2022, MEDCO had $75,000.00 invested in preferred stock
with FireFly Farms.

12
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DEVELOPMENT, CONSULTANCIES, STUDIES, and REPORTS

Magnetic Levitation (MAGLEV) Train Project

The Maryland Department of Transportation (MDOT) requested MEDCO’s assistance in its
application for Federal Railway Administration grant funding to study a “super conducting” MAGLEV
train between Washington DC and Baltimore. MEDCO also entered into an Economic Development
Cooperative Agreement with the Baltimore-Washington Rapid Rail, LLC, a private firm, which in
cooperation with the Japanese Central Railroad, is proposing to construct the system and provide the
20% non-federal match funds to perform environmental and engineering studies. MEDCO aids MDOT
in administering and managing federal and private grant funds to complete the studies.

Maryland Department of Transportation Purple Line Financial Transaction
Advisor Contract

The Maryland Department of Transportation (MDOT), on behalf of the Maryland Transit
Administration, has requested MEDCQO’s assistance in providing financial, consulting, and related
services to MDOT in support of the Purple Line. The Purple Line is a 16.2-mile light rail transit line
extending from Bethesda to New Carrollton that will provide enhanced transportation options and
create economic development opportunities. A financial transaction advisor has been selected and has
been working on a revised project finance plan.

On April 14, 2022, MEDCO issued its $643,455,000 Maryland Economic Development Corporation
(Purple Line Rail Project) Private Activity Revenue Bonds, Series 2022A (RSA) (Green Bonds) and
Series 2022B (Green Bonds) to (i) pay for certain costs of developing, designing, constructing,
equipping, and other related expenses of the Purple Line Light Rail Project, (ii) pay for all or a portion
of the costs of the costs of issuance and other costs related to the transaction, (iii) pay interest on the

Series 2022A bonds during construction and (iv) fund any necessary reserves to secure the Series
2022B bonds.

Maryland Department of Transportation Traffic Relief Plan

The Maryland of Transportation, on behalf of the Maryland State Highway Administration and the
Maryland Transportation Authority, has requested MEDCQO’s assistance in the facilitating the
development of a Traffic Relief Plan (TRP) to (i) relieve traffic congestion in the National Capital
Region, (ii) accommodate Homeland Security by providing additional capacity to, among other things,
assist in population evacuation, (iii) improve movement of goods and services, and (iv) improve multi-
modal connectivity with existing and new transit facilities. An advisor for financial, transaction, and
marketing services has been selected, and has been working to help identify the best structure and
delivery of the TRP project. The project has received approval from the Board of Public Works for
delivery as a Public Private Partnership and the advisor has released a request for qualifications and
identified a short list of teams to receive a draft request for proposal. The financial transaction advisor
is preparing a Private Activity Bonds application for submittal to the U.S. Department of
Transportation.

13
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DEPARTMENT OF COMMERCE

MEDCO partners with the Department of Commerce (Commerce) by utilizing Commerce’s One Maryland
Tax Credit and Advantage Maryland (MEDAAF) to develop flex buildings and business parks.

Barton Farms Business Park, Allegany County

Developed by MEDCO and located south of Cumberland on US Route 220, the project initially
included land acquisition, permitting, utility installation, and site preparation. Throughout the project’s
lifespan, MEDCO has sold parts of the property: in 2004, American Woodmark Corporation purchased
approximately 40 acres; in 2015, Allegany County purchased approximately 27.5 acres and constructed
a flex building to attract businesses to the project. MEDCO, Allegany County, and Commerce continue
to market the remaining property to technology-based businesses looking to relocate to the Western
Maryland region.

Pocomoke Flex Building, Worchester County

Constructed by MEDCO in 2002, the Pocomoke Flex Building is a 43,000 square foot industrial shell
that provides marketable flex space in Worchester County. In 2006, Mid-Atlantic Institute for Space
and Technology (MIST) master leased the entire building. In 2007, MIST and MEDCO were awarded
a $200,000 EDA grant, providing for interior improvements to expand existing workspace. In February
2012, MIST relinquished its master lease of the facility. In June 2015, MEDCO master leased the entire
facility to Hardwire, LLC for a ten-year term. Hardwire, LLC, a leading manufacturer of protective
armor used by the military and other consumers, utilizes the building to expand its manufacturing
capabilities and workspace, and has an option to purchase the building at the end of the lease term.

Patuxent Business Park, Calvert County

In 2000, with Commerce financing, MEDCO purchased approximately 92 acres to develop a business
park in Calvert County. The park was designed for Class A office and flex space. In 2005, MEDCO
secured additional Commerce funding for the ongoing costs of engineering, design, permitting, and
infrastructure. In 2016, Dominion Cove Point LNG purchased Lot 6 of the park and constructed an
approximately 20,000 square foot office and warehouse building and a helicopter pad, furthering
Dominion’s liquid natural gas initiatives in Calvert County.

In 2019, Dominion purchased Lot 5 with the intent of developing that site for additional office and
warehouse space. In 2020, Lot 11 sold to a developer to develop a flex building on the site and attract
businesses to Calvert County. In 2021, the commercial broker brought Lots 7, 8 and 12 under contract,
with the potential for full sale after due diligence investigations by buyers have concluded. Lot 12
contract was terminated within the given contingency period by the potential buyer. The feasibility
study on lots 7 and 8 has been extended until November 2022. MEDCO and the commercial broker
continue to work with Calvert County in marketing remaining lots to interested buyers.

McHenry-Garrett County Flex Building, Garrett County

At the request of the Garrett County Commissioners, in 2019, MEDCO applied for and received
$2,000,000 in MEDAAF funds to pay for site improvements and building construction for a 20,000
square foot flexible use facility within the McHenry Business Park, located in Garrett County. The
facility was completed in 2020 and is marketed to new and expanding businesses in the Garrett County
region. MEDCO works with Garrett County and the Maryland Department of Commerce to market the
remaining portions of the facility.

14



MEDCO

In December 2020, at the request of Garrett County, MEDCO agreed to utilize the facility as a drive-
through COVID testing site.

In late 2021 extending into early 2022, MEDCO leased the facility to Total Biz to use as seasonal
storage. MEDCO continue to work with the County and Commerce on marketing the facility to
prospective lessees and buyers.

15
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ACTIVE FINANCED PROJECTS

Since its inception in 1984, MEDCO has provided bond financing for hundreds of projects. Below is a list
of MEDCO’s active financed projects as of June 30, 2022:

MEDCO Owned Bond Financed Projects

Laboratory for Telecommunications
Science Facility Series 2003
Chesapeake Resort and Conference
Center Series 2006

Salisbury University Series 2012
Sheppard University Series 2012
Towson University Series 2012
Salisbury University Series 2013
Frostburg State University Series 2013
Maryland State Archives Series 2014
Bowie State University Series 2015
University of Maryland, Baltimore Series
2015

University of Maryland, College Park
Series 2016

Conduit Bond Financed Projects

Maryland Soccer Foundation Series
2000

Prologue Series 2005

Constellation Energy Group Series 2006
Lutheran World Relief Series 2007
Howard Hughes Medical Institute Series
2008

Linemark Printing Series 2008
Crossroads Partnership, LLC Series
2009

CNX Marine Terminal Series 2010
Gold Crust Baking Series 2010

Emerge Series 2010

Cornell Associates Series 2010
Providence Center Series 2010

The Arc of Prince George’s County
Series 2010

United States Pharmacopeial Convention
Series 2012
Your Public Radio Corporation Series
2012
American Urological Association Series
2012
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University of Maryland, Baltimore
County Series 2016

Metro Centre at Owings Mills Series
2017

Towson University Series 2017
Capitol Technology University Series
2017

Baltimore City Garages Series 2018
University of Maryland, College Park
Child Care Facility Project, Series 2019
Bowie State University Series 2020
Morgan State University Series 2020
Maryland Public Health Laboratory
Series 2021

Morgan State University Series 2022

Universities Space Research Association
Series 2012

Arundel Lodge Series 2013

Washington Research Library
Consortium Series 2013

Chesapeake Bay Foundation Series 2013
Hospice of the Chesapeake Series 2014
Allegany College Series 2014

Lyon Bakery Series 2014

Compass, Inc. Series 2015

Easter Seals Series 2016

Annie E. Casey Foundation, Inc. Series
2017

AFCO BWI I, LLC Series 2017

PRG Towson Place Properties, LLC
Series 2017

Young Men’s Christian Association of
Maryland, Inc. Series 2017

Seagirt Marine Terminal Series 2017
Arc of Baltimore Series 2018

Seagirt Marine Terminal Series 2019
Potomac Electric Power Company Series
2019



AFCO Airport Real Estate Group Series
2019

The Children’s Guild Obligated Group
Series 2019

National Park Service Project Series
2020

University of Maryland, College Park
Office Condominium Project Series 2020
Port Covington Series 2020

Loan and Grant Financed Project

Barton Business Park
Pocomoke Flex Building

MEDCO

SSA Baltimore Project Series 2021
Maryland Science Center Series 2021
Blind Industries and Services of
Maryland Series 2021

Catholic Relief Services Series 2022
929 N. Wolfe Street Series 2022
Purple Line Light Rail Series 2022

Patuxent Business Park
Maryland Center for Construction
Education and Innovation, Inc.
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MINORITY BUSINESS ENTERPRISE (MBE) PARTICIPATION

MEDCO promotes economic development in the State by purchasing supplies and services from
entities that operate within the State. While most of MEDCO’s projects are privately funded,
MEDCO complies with applicable minority business enterprise requirements for projects that
involve governmental funding sources. In addition to working with MBE businesses, MEDCO
works with various businesses that are part of the Women’s Business Enterprise (WBE),
Disadvantaged Business Enterprise (DBE), and Small Business Enterprise (SBE) programs.
During the fiscal year ending June 30, 2022, MEDCO purchased goods and services pertaining to
operation, administration, and procurement from the following MBE, WBE, SBE, and DBE
businesses:

The Canton Group (MBE, SBE, & DBE) Crossroads Consulting Services, LLC
$4,438.75 (WBE)

Database management and servicing $1,640.00

Curry Printing and Copy Center Professional feasibility study services

(WBE) 81,065.00
Printing and business cards

During FY22, MEDCO’s development projects purchased goods and services pertaining to
development, design, operation, administration, and procurement from MBE, WBE, SBE, and
DBE businesses, pursuant to requirements set forth in the projects’ bond documents. These
projects included:

Bowie State University Entrepreneurial Living and Learning Center

Construction on the Entrepreneurial Living and Learning Center at Bowie State University
began in February 2020 and was completed in summer 2021. The project was completed with
a 31.8% MBE/WBE inclusion goal for construction, representing approximately $15 million.

Morgan State University, Thurgood Marshall Hall

Construction of Thurgood Marshall Hall, a 600-bed student housing project and dining center
located at Morgan State University, began in November 2020, and was completed in time for
the Fall 2022 semester. Construction of the project is on target to reach its 30% project
inclusion goal, an amount expected to be approximately $28.8 Million.

Other MBE Participation:
MEDCO staff attend MBE networking and procurement events. MEDCO also utilizes the
Governors’ Office of Minority Affairs and other directories for event and service information.

MBE Memberships:

=  Member Maryland Washington Minority Companies Association since 2012
* Member Maryland Minority Contractors Association since 2012

18



MEDCO

Project Classification Report 2022

MEDCO?’s loan classification policy, adopted in 2013, characterizes projects as “Performing”,
“Watch”, or “Non-Performing.” The following projects, where MEDCO was either the issuer or
owner, were classified as either Non-Performing or Watch during Fiscal Year 2021 (and as updated
after June 30, 2022, as indicated below):

Chesapeake Resort and Conference Center
Status: Non-Performing

The Chesapeake Bay Conference Center (CBCC) began suffering losses during the 2008 economic
downturn. The project was formerly classified as “Watch” in 2010, when the project failed to
achieve the required minimum required Debt Service Coverage Ratio of 1.25. However, the project
was reclassified as “Non-Performing” in 2014 after the June Debt Service payment was only
partially made.

Results and operations for FY21 were significantly impacted by COVID-19. Almost all large
group business cancelled, and the large group segment has yet to recover. Though a vaccine for
the COVID-19 virus was available for all individuals over the age of twelve, meeting planners
were reluctant to conduct meetings for large groups. However, CBCC'’s transient business has
been very robust, and business, at times, was at record levels. All the project’s operating expenses
were paid, and a partial interest payment of $1,800,000 was made on June 1, 2021.

MEDCO continues to work collaboratively with the Project’s bondholders, who have shown
flexibility in assuring there is sufficient cash to sustain the operations. In December 2021, the
investors entered into a Second Amendment to Forbearance Agreement to continue to fund
operations through June 2022. Six-month forbearance agreements have been extended in the past
and MEDCO believes the investors will extend again through the end of the 2023 fiscal year.

Revenue for the FY22 continued to increase post-pandemic because of pent-up travel demand and
an increase in group bookings and rebooks from the pandemic period. Increased travel demand
resulted in occupancy levels not seen at the resort since 2008, driving the average daily room rate
to record levels. Staffing was increased to handle the additional business which, along with supply
chain issues and inflation, did increase operating costs. Even with the increased demand, however,
revenues remained below levels necessary for full debt-service payments. All the project’s
operating expenses are being paid, and additional interest payments totaling $3,808,875 were made
toward interest payments not made in prior years.

While MEDCO anticipates improved performance for FY23 due to strong management and
growing group sales activity, the Project’s performance will remain below the level of revenues
necessary to fully fund all debt obligations. The debt is held by institutional investors who, as
reported above, have continued to provide support to the operations, which MEDCO expects to
continue. MEDCO expects all the operational expenses to paid in accordance with the terms of
the forbearance agreement. Phase one construction of new residential development (151 of a total
305 units along the resort golf course) began in April 2022. Impacts on new home development,
sales and the influx of new residents are expected to be very positive into the future but the degree
to which are unknown at this time until final development plans are approved and completed.
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929 N. Wolfe Street, LLC Project Series 2014 A, Series 2014 B-1 (Tax-

Exempt), Series 2014 B-2 (Taxable)
Status: Performing (Reclassified September 2022)

The 929 North Wolfe Street, LLC Project (Project), a conduit project, was classified as “Watch”
in June 2019 when the Project failed to meet the Debt Service Coverage Ratio of 1.20 as required
by the financing documents. Per the Loan Agreement, Debt Service Coverage Ratio below 1.20x
does not constitute an Event of Default; however, two consecutive years of Debt Service Coverage
Ratio below 1.20x will constitute an Event of Default. East Baltimore Development, Inc. (EBDI),
the borrower, has taken measures to improve the Project’s financial performance, including hiring
a management consultant to evaluate the Project, hiring a financial advisor, and replacing the
Project’s former manager, Greystar, with another reputable third-party housing manager. Despite
EBDI’s efforts, the Project failed to meet the Debt Service Coverage Ratio for a second
consecutive year and did not make required payments under the Agreement to Make Payments
Agreement (PILOT payments) and subsequently entered into a forbearance agreement, as
amended, with the bondholders.

In August 2021, the Project was reclassified as “Non-Performing.” The Project was under a
forbearance agreement, as amended, through December 31, 2021. Pursuant to the forbearance
agreement, the bondholders agreed to forbear from exercising their rights and remedies under the
financing documents related to the Debt Service Coverage Ratio Event of Default. Additionally,
the bondholders agreed to forbear from exercising their rights and remedies due to non-payment
of certain principal payment commending December 1, 2020, through December 31, 2021

The bondholders approached MEDCO expressing a desire to restructure bonds given improved
operating performance in recent years; however, COVID-related pressures made restructuring
challenging. MEDCO continued to work with EBDI and the bondholders to monitor the Project’s
performance and explore solutions to return the Project to performing status.

The 929 N. Wolfe Street, LLC Project was refinanced on January 31, 2022, through MEDCO’s
issuance of its 929 N. Wolfe Street LLC Maryland Economic Development Corporation Tax-
Exempt Revenue Bonds Series 2022 A (Tax-Exempt) and Series 2022 B (Taxable). The proceeds
of the 2022A and 2022B bonds, together with other funds, were applied to (a) refund all of the
MEDCO’s outstanding 929 N. Wolfe Street, LLC Project Series 2014 bonds, and (b) finance or
refinance (i) the payment of certain past-due contractual payment obligations with respect to the
project, (ii) the repayment of certain advances made to cover the project’s operating shortfalls, (ii1)
the payment of a termination fee with respect to an interest rate swap, (iv) the payment of past-due
accounts payable, (V) certain other necessary and useful capital improvements and expenditures,
(vi) certain costs related to the issuance of the bonds, and (vii) the funding of certain reserve funds
and other related eligible costs.

The 929 N. Wolfe Street, LLC Project was reclassified as “Performing” as of September 2022.

Baltimore City Garage Project
Status: Performing (Reclassified September 2022)

The Baltimore City Garage project (Project) was classified as "Watch" on July 15, 2020, when the
rating on the Series 2018A and Series 2018B bonds was downgraded by S&P from BBB stable to
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BB- negative, and the rating on the Series 2018C bonds was downgraded by S&P from BBB-
stable to BB- negative. The Governor's stay-at-home mandate beginning in March 2020
dramatically impacted transient parking revenues across Baltimore City and caused a drop in
monthly parking customers. As some areas of the economy have started to reopen, MEDCO has
seen a slight uptick in parking revenues, but expects recovery to be slow. For FY 20, the Project
did not meet the Project’s required coverage ratio and MEDCO engaged a parking consultant in
accordance with the bond documents. For FY 21, the Project did not meet the Project’s required
coverage ratio and MEDCO engaged a parking consultant in accordance with the bond documents.
MEDCO continued to meet regularly with the manager and closely monitored the performance of
the Project. Since the State of Maryland entered stage 3 of the Governor’s Maryland Strong:
Roadmap to Recovery in May 2021, MEDCO has seen a promising increase in business at the
garages

In FY 22, the Project saw an uptick in business as both monthly and transient business returned to
Baltimore’s central business district and the inner harbor. Transient business greatly improved as
more conferences were held at the Baltimore Convention Center and with the return to full capacity
of seating at the Oriole Park at Camden Yards and M&T Bank Stadium, transient business from
the sports fan returned. MEDCO anticipates the Project will meet its required FY 22 coverage ratio
requirement and there will be no need for MEDCO to engage a parking consultant for FY 22.

The Baltimore City Project was reclassified as “Performing” as of September 2022.

Purple Line Light Rail
Status: Performing (Reclassified September 2022)

The Purple Line Light Rail (Purple Line), a conduit project, was classified as “Watch” in August
2020 when disputes regarding project delays and budget between the Maryland Department of
Transportation (MDOT) and Purple Line Transit Partners (PLTP), the concessionaire, escalated
and PLTP gave notice of its intent to terminate its agreement with the State of Maryland (State).
The State remained committed to Purple Line completion, however. In September 2020, MDOT
requested MEDCO assist MDOT by providing financial, consulting, and related services to MDOT
in support of the Purple Line. In February 2021, MEDCO entered into a Financial Transaction
Advisor Contract with Ernst & Young Infrastructure Advisors, LLC on behalf of Maryland Transit
Administration, an agency of MDOT, to provide financial and transaction advisory services to
support the Purple Line project. MEDCO continued to work with MDOT to support the project.

The Purple Line Series 2016 bonds were redeemed on November 30, 2021.

On April 14, 2022, MEDCO issued its $643,455,000 Maryland Economic Development
Corporation (Purple Line Rail Project) Private Activity Revenue Bonds, Series 2022A (RSA)
(Green Bonds) and Series 2022B (Green Bonds) to (i) pay for certain costs of developing,
designing, constructing, equipping, and other related expenses of the Purple Line Light Rail
Project, (i1) pay for all or a portion of the costs of the costs of issuance and other costs related to
the transaction, (iii) pay interest on the Series 2022 A bonds during construction and (iv) fund any
necessary reserves to secure the Series 2022B bonds.

The Purple Line Light Rail project was reclassified as “Performing” as of September 2022.
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Student Housing Projects
Status: Watch

The following owned student housing projects were classified as “Watch” in May 2020: University
of Maryland, College Park; University of Maryland, Baltimore County; University of Maryland,
Baltimore; Salisbury University; and Towson University. In September 2020, Bowie State
University was classified as “Watch”, and Salisbury University was removed from “Watch.” In
August 2021, Frostburg State University was classified as “Watch”, and University of Maryland,
College Park was removed from “Watch.” In October 2021, Frostburg State University was
removed from “Watch.”

In March 2020, the University System of Maryland transitioned all undergraduate face-to-face
instruction to remote instruction for the rest of the Spring 2020 semester. In accordance with the
University System of Maryland’s decision, all universities in the system closed their on-campus
residential halls and refunded student for any prepaid rent. At the universities’ requests, MEDCO
followed suit with its owned student housing projects.

Per the respective Trust Indentures, the coverage ratio requirement as of the last day of each fiscal
year must not to be less than 1.20. If in any fiscal year, the coverage ratio of 1.20 is not met, a
management consultant must be employed. For FY 2020, MEDCO retained a management
consultant for the student housing projects at Bowie State University (CMRC); Towson
University; University of Maryland, Baltimore; University of Maryland, Baltimore County; and
University of Maryland, College Park projects. For FY 2021, the projects at Bowie State
University (CMRC); Towson University; University of Maryland, Baltimore; and University of
Maryland, Baltimore County did not meet the coverage ratio requirement and MEDCO retained a
management consultant for those projects.

Most of MEDCQO’s student housing projects have fully recovered from pandemic related
difficulties. For FY 2022, MEDCO anticipates the projects at Towson University, University
Maryland, Baltimore and Frostburg State University will not meet the coverage ratio requirement
and MEDCO will be retaining a management consultant for those projects.

As of September 2022, University of Maryland, Baltimore County and Bowie State University
(CMRC) were removed from “Watch.” As of September 2022, the Towson University and
University of Maryland, Baltimore projects remain classified as “Watch” and Frostburg State
University project was added to “Watch.”

Based on the information available at this time, MEDCO anticipates the projects will be able to
fund operating expenses and make their next upcoming debt services payments.
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ADVISORY CAPACITY

Through its staff’s active service in board memberships and advisory positions within various
organizations throughout the State, MEDCO directly promotes economic development and helps
maximize new economic opportunities. These organizations include:

Bainbridge Development Corporation (BDC)

BDC’s purpose is to develop the Bainbridge Naval Training Center and to accelerate the site’s
transfer to the private sector. MEDCO’s Executive Director is an ex-officio member of the
board of directors.

Baltimore Metropolitan Council

The Baltimore Metropolitan Council (BMC) works with the region’s elected executives to
identify mutual interests and develop collaborative strategies, plans and programs that help
improve our quality of life and economic vitality. MEDCQO’s Executive Director is a member
of the board of directors.

Junior Achievement of Central Maryland (JA)

JA’s mission is to inspire and prepare young people to succeed. Community volunteers deliver
real life lessons, share experiences, and provide mentorship to students. The objective being
to impact young people’s perceptions about the importance of education and critical life
skills— specifically promoting financial capability, career readiness, entrepreneurship, and
business ownership. MEDCO’s Executive Director currently serves as Chair of the board of
directors.

Maryland Technology Enterprise Institute (Mtech)— Maryland Industrial
Partnerships (MIPS)

MIPS promotes the development of technology and commercialization of products through
research partnerships between universities and industry. MEDCO’s Executive Director is a
member of Mtech Board of Visitors, as well as the MIPS advisory board.

Maryland Economic Development Association (MEDA)

MEDA, a nonprofit organization for economic development professionals, promotes
economic well-being by working to improve the state’s business climate and encouraging
professionalism in economic development. MEDCO’s Executive Director is a member of
MEDA’s Past Presidents. Past Presidents provide economic development consulting services
to parties requesting services. Other key MEDCO staff helps lead MEDA’s Young Leaders
and Program Development efforts.

Maryland Department of Housing and Community Development, Revenue Bond
Advisory Board (Revenue Advisory Board)

The Revenue Bond Advisory Board provides independent advice and expertise on the
issuance of revenue bonds to the Department of Housing and Community Development.
MEDCO’s Executive Director serves as a member of the Revenue Bond Advisory Board.
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Maryland Marketing Partnership (MMP)

The Maryland Marketing Partnership, founded in statute as the Maryland Public-Private
Partnership Marketing Corporation, was created to develop a branding strategy for the state,
market the state’s assets and encourage the location and growth of new businesses in
Maryland. MEDCO’s Executive Director sits as a member of the board of directors.

Towson University Presidential Scholar Business Advisory Council

Dr. Nancy L. Grasmick, Towson University’s first Presidential Scholar, works to fund, design,
pilot and assess innovative initiatives in education and leadership to improve opportunities for
students, faculty and the greater community. MEDCQO’s Executive Director sits as a member
of this advisory council along with other leaders from the business and academia.

University of Maryland — UM Ventures Baltimore Fund

The Baltimore Fund stimulates economic advancement in Baltimore City by supporting
Maryland-based public higher education created or sponsored technology companies and
affiliated entities locating in the city. The Fund also makes investments in new business
incubation and accelerations programs. MEDCO Executive Director is a member of the
Baltimore Fund Advisory Committee.
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MARYLAND ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION

Management’s Discussion and Analysis
For the Years Ended June 30, 2022 and 2021

As management of Maryland Economic Development Corporation (MEDCO), we offer readers of the financial
statements this narrative overview and analysis of MEDCO’s financial activities for the fiscal years ended June
30,2022 and 2021. Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) is designed to (a) assist the reader in focusing
on significant financial issues, (b) provide an overview of financial activity, and (¢) identify changes in MEDCO’s
financial position. We encourage readers to consider the information presented here in conjunction with MEDCO’s
financial statements and accompanying notes.

General

MEDCO is a body corporate and political and a public instrumentality of the State of Maryland that was created
in 1984 by an act of the Maryland General Assembly. MEDCO’s purpose is to attract new business and to
encourage expansion of existing businesses in Maryland through the development, expansion, and/or
modernization of facilities. In fulfilling this purpose, MEDCO owns and leases certain properties and makes loans
to organizations that require financing to acquire or develop properties. MEDCO also serves as a consultant or
development manager on certain projects.

MEDCO issues limited-obligation revenue bonds and notes to provide capital financing for projects. Most of the
bonds and notes are conduit debt obligations issued for specific third parties in MEDCO’s name. In most of these
cases, the related assets, liabilities, revenues, expenses, and cash flows are not included in MEDCQO’s financial
statements, as MEDCO has no obligation for the debt beyond the resources provided under the related lease or
loan with the party on whose behalf the debt was issued. The bonds and notes not issued for specific third parties
primarily finance operating facilities of MEDCO. These bonds and notes are payable solely from the revenues of
the respective facilities as defined in the related trust indentures. MEDCQ is the owner of these operating facilities
and has retained on-site professional managers for each facility. Neither the conduit debt obligations nor the debt
issued to finance operating facilities is backed by the full faith and credit of the State of Maryland.

These Projects are owned by MEDCO or were owned during the period of the financial statements and as such are
consolidated in the financial statements:

e  Christa McAuliffe Student Housing (Bowie) at Bowie State University

e Bowie Mixed Use Facility Student Housing (Bowie Mixed Use) at Bowie State University

e Baltimore City Garages (City Garages)

e CTU Foundation Student Housing (CTU) at Capitol Technology University

e Chesapeake Bay Conference Center (CBCC)

¢ Edgewood Commons Student Housing (Frostburg) at Frostburg State University

e Owings Mills Metro Centre Garage (Metro Centre)

e Morgan View (MV) and Thurgood Marshall Hall (TMH) Student Housing at Morgan State University
(Morgan)

e National Cybersecurity Center of Excellence (NCCoE) in Montgomery County, Maryland

e Rockville Innovation Center (RIC) in Montgomery County, Maryland

e University Park Phase I and II (Salisbury) at Salisbury University

e West Village (Towson WV) and Millennium Hall Student Housing (Towson MH) at Towson University



MARYLAND ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION

Management’s Discussion and Analysis
For the Years Ended June 30, 2022 and 2021

General — continued

e Fayette Square Student Housing (UMAB) at University of Maryland, Baltimore
e Walker Avenue Student Housing (UMBC) at University of Maryland, Baltimore County

e University of Maryland, College Park Energy and Infrastructure Program (UMCP Energy)
o  South Campus Commons and The Courtyards (UMCP Housing) at University of Maryland, College Park
e University Village (University Village) at Sheppard Pratt

Overview of the Financial Statements

This MD&A is intended to serve as an introduction to MEDCQ’s financial statements. MEDCO is a self-supporting
entity and follows enterprise fund reporting; accordingly, the financial statements are presented using the economic
resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Enterprise fund statements offer short-term and
long-term financial information about the activities and operations of MEDCO. MEDCO’s statements consist of
two parts: the financial statements and notes to the financial statements.

The Financial Statements

MEDCO’s financial statements are designed to provide readers with a broad overview of its finances, in a manner
similar to a private-sector business.

The statements of net position present information on all of MEDCO’s assets, deferred outflows of resources,
liabilities, and deferred inflows of resources, with the difference reported as net position.

The statements of revenues, expenses and changes in net position present the operating activities of MEDCO and
sources of non-operating revenues and expenses.

The statements of cash flows present summarized sources and uses of funds for MEDCO’s activities. Cash flows
from operating activities generally represent receipts and disbursements associated with property and equipment
rentals, operating facilities and energy services as well as day-to-day management. Cash flows from non-capital
financing activities generally include the incurrence of debt obligations to finance loans and the related principal
and interest payments. Cash flows from capital and related financing activities generally include the incurrence of
debt obligations to finance capital assets, the subsequent investment of the debt proceeds in property and
equipment, and the related principal and interest payments. Cash flows from investing activities generally include
loan originations and related collections of principal and interest payments and purchases and sales of investments
and collections of related income.

Notes to the Financial Statements

The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the data provided in the financial
statements. The notes to the financial statements can be found on pages 21-63 of this report.



MARYLAND ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION

Management’s Discussion and Analysis
For the Years Ended June 30, 2022 and 2021

Financial Analysis of MEDCO

The following table summarizes MEDCO’s financial position as of June 30,:

2022 202t 2020

Current assets $ 85,150,195 $ 91203275 $ 103,727,095
Net right-of-use assets, capital assets, and right-to-use buildings 472,167,318 454,720,730 383,550,716
Other non-current assets 101,306,400 135,290,199 102,777,018

Total Assets $ 658623913 $ 681214204 $ 590,054,829
Deferred outflow of resources $ 4,516,141 $ 5,803,422 $ 6,646,147
Current liabilities $ 261,774373 $ 305,898,748 $ 289577917
Bonds and notes payable, net of current portion 637,116,772 663,910,663 605,609,994
Other non-current liabilities 34648217 38,429,944 6,874

Total Liabilities $ 933,539,362 $ 1,008.239355 $ 895,194,785
Deferred inflow of resources $ 7,593,731 $ 7,551,838 $ 3,112,110
Net investment in capital assets $ (303933664) $ (325647539) $ (263,265,160)
Restricted under trust indentures 79,162,232 120,915,930 91,452,500
Restricted for capital and other purposes 47,703 36,779 15,633
Unrestricted - Projects (81,028,466) (149,913,935) (153,254,061)
Unrestricted - MEDCO 27,759,156 25,835,198 23,445,169

Total Net Position $ (277993,039) $ (328,773,567) $ (301,605919)

Significant factors in the changes in MEDCO’s financial position for the year ended June 30, 2022 include:

e During the year ended June 30, 2022, operations at the student housing operating facilities fully recovered
from COVID-19 related difficulties as students have returned to campus full time. In addition, revenue
increased at MEDCO’s garage facilities as both monthly and transient business returned to Baltimore’s
central business district and the inner harbor, and at CBCC as a result of increased travel demand, group
bookings and returning business from the COVID-19 period.

e  During the year ended June 30, 2022, MEDCO adopted Government Accounting Standards Board (GASB)
Statement No. 87, Leases (GASB 87), using the retrospective approach, which requires a restatement for
all prior periods presented. As a result of the adoption of GASB 87, MEDCO recognized a lease liability,
right-of-use asset, leases receivable and deferred inflow of resources as of July 1, 2020. Additional
information is provided in Notes 1 and 2 to the financial statements.
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis
For the Years Ended June 30, 2022 and 2021

Financial Analysis of MEDCO - continued

Current assets decreased primarily as a result of a decrease in cash and cash equivalents at MEDCO,
$11,127,000, primarily due to the use of funds that had been advanced for the planning and construction
of future projects and the short-term investment of cash as interest rates increased. This decrease was
partially offset by increases in cash and cash equivalents at Bowie Mixed Use, $1,073,000, as a result of
the project opening in August 2021, and at other operating projects, $2,276,000, as operations have
recovered from the COVID-19 period. Deposits with bond trustees decreased at Morgan, $4,702,000,
primarily due to the use of funds on deposit for capitalized interest payments and a decrease in the required
deposits for interest and principal due to the issuance of 2022 bonds and the refunding of the 2012 bonds,
and at CBCC, $3,075,000, primarily to make additional payments toward deferred senior interest. Funds
for replacement and additions of furnishings and equipment at CBCC increased, $1,062,000, due to current
year capital expenditures being less than the amount contributed per the management agreement. These
decreases were partially offset by increases in rent and other receivables primarily at MEDCO, $1,856,000,
as a result of construction fees paid on behalf of Morgan State University that are awaiting reimbursement,
CBCC, $2,851,000, due to increases in billings as occupancy continues to recover from COVID-19, and
UMCP Energy, $2,547,000, as a result of increased billings due for maintenance and repairs.

Net right-of-use assets, capital assets and right-to-use buildings increased due to development expenditures
for Morgan Thurgood Marshall Hall, $36,559,000, and various other capital expenditures at Projects
totaling $9,924,000. These increases were partially offset by current year depreciation and amortization of
$28,653,000.

Other non-current assets decreased primarily as a result of funds deposited with the trustee primarily due
to development expenditures for Morgan Thurgood Marshall Hall, $34,725,000, and Bowie Mixed Use,
$2,089,000, as well as capital, debt service and operational expenditures at various other Projects totaling
$3,966,000. These decreases were partially offset by increases in surplus funds deposited with the trustee
at UMCP Housing, $4,864,000, and various other Projects, $3,276,000, as operations have recovered from
the COVID-19 period. Leases receivable decreased $1,244,000 for MEDCO due to payments received
from leases during the current year in which MEDCO is the lessor.

Current liabilities decreased primarily as a result of the gain on extinguishment of management fee payable
related to CBCC deferred management fees and accrued interest in the amount of $61,034,000, and
advances, $13,379,000, due to the use of funds that had been advanced for the planning and construction
of future projects. These decreases were partially offset by increases in accounts payable and accrued
expenses of $2,801,000 at UMCP Energy as a result of increased billings due for maintenance and repairs
that were performed in May and June, the current portion of bonds payable due to CBCC not being able
to fund the amount due during the year ended June 30, 2022, $7,925,000, accrued ground rent primarily
due to increases in cash flow resulting in increases to cumulative rent due at Bowie, $1,749,000, Morgan,
$1,477,000, and UMCP, $4,362,000, accrued interest at University Village, $2,585,000, primarily due to
an increase in lease liability interest due, and lease liability at CBCC, $1,940,000, and University Village,
$1,647,000.
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Financial Analysis of MEDCO - continued

Bonds and notes payable, net of current portion, decreased primarily as a result of the refunding of 2012
bonds, $23,320,000, and the issuance of 2022 bonds, $22,707,000, at Morgan. The reclassification of fiscal
year 2023 principal payments from non-current to current liabilities, $22,529,000, and the amortization of
bond premium/discounts, $2,580,000.

Other non-current liabilities decreased primarily due to a decrease in the lease liability of $1,940,000 at
CBCC, and $1,647,000 at University Village, due to ground rent payments becoming current.

Significant factors in the changes in MEDCQO’s financial position for the year ended June 30, 2021 include:

During the year ended June 30, 2021, average occupancy at the student housing operating facilities
decreased due to the ongoing impact of COVID-19. In addition, there was a decrease in parking at
MEDCO’s garage facilities and CBCC operated with limitations on occupancy, pool capacity, spa hours
and food and bar service among others as government mandates were in effect.

Current assets decreased primarily as a result of a decrease in cash and cash equivalents, $23,538,000,
primarily due to the use of funds that had been advanced for the planning and construction of future
projects. This decrease was partially offset by an increase in deposits with bond trustees for Morgan
Thurgood Marshall Hall due to the funding of the capitalized interest, principal and cost of issuance
accounts in connection with the issuance of Series 2020 bonds to finance the development of the student
housing facility, $8,246,000, and CBCC, as transient occupancy and revenue increased as travel
restrictions due to COVID-19 were lifted, $3,617,000.

Net right-of-use assets, capital assets and right-to-use buildings increased due to the adoption of GASB 87
and the recognition of right-of-use assets, net of accumulated amortization, of $655,000 at MEDCO,
$24,303,000 at CBCC and $17,736,000 at University Village, development expenditures for Bowie Mixed
Use, $32,908,000, and Morgan Thurgood Marshall Hall, $14,826,000, and various other capital
expenditures at Projects totaling $6,277,000. These increases were partially offset by current year
depreciation and amortization of $27,752,000.

Other non-current assets increased primarily as a result of the adoption of GASB 87 and the recognition
of a lease receivable of $4,781,000 at MEDCO, funds deposited with the trustee primarily for the funding
of construction and debt service reserve accounts for Morgan Thurgood Marshall Hall, $64,035,000, and
UMCP Housing, primarily due to deposits made to the repair and replacement fund, $5,795,000. These
increases were partially offset by a decrease in deposits with bond trustee for Bowie Mixed Use primarily
due to development expenditures, $37,352,000, and capital, debt service and operational expenditures at
various other Projects totaling $2,320,000.
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Financial Analysis of MEDCO — continued

e Current liabilities increased primarily as a result of the recognition of a lease liability of $116,000 at
MEDCO, $28,949,000 at CBCC and $15,471,000 at University Village due to the adoption of GASB 87,
additional accruals at CBCC for interest payable and management and service fees, $32,468,000, an
increase in the current portion of bonds payable due to CBCC not being able to fund the amount due during
the year ended June 30, 2021, $7,545,000, accrued interest, $2,408,000, primarily as a result of the issuance
of bonds to finance development of Morgan Thurgood Marshall Hall, and accounts payable, $8,047,000,
primarily due to accrued capital expenditures for Morgan Thurgood Marshall Hall and the deferral of
expenses due to the University of Maryland, College Park, Towson University and the University of
Maryland, Baltimore County per a memorandum of understanding. These increases were partially offset
by the repayment of advances for the planning and construction of future projects, $30,978,000 and the
derecognition of accrued ground rent at CBCC, $39,589,000, due to the implementation of GASB 87.

e Bonds and notes payable, net of current portion, increased primarily as a result of the issuance of bonds to
finance development of Morgan Thurgood Marshall Hall, $84,323,000. This increase was partially offset
by the reclassification of fiscal year 2022 principal payments from non-current to current liabilities,
$22,395,000, the amortization of bond premium/discounts, $2,581,000, and the early repayment of bonds
and notes payable, $837,000.

e Other non-current liabilities increased due to the recognition of a lease liability of $914,000 at MEDCO,
$22,045,000 at CBCC and $15,471,000 at University Village as a result of the adoption of GASB 87.

e Deferred inflow of resources increased $4,391,000 at MEDCO due to the recognition of rents collected in
advance as a result of the adoption of GASB 87.

MEDCO’s net position as of June 30, 2022, 2021 and 2020 (after considering the effects of eliminations and
adjustments in consolidation) are detailed by source as follows:

2022 2021 2020
Operating facilities $ (306,698,115) § (355864,458) $  (326,742,420)
Other operations 28,705,076 27,090,891 25,136,501
Net position $ (277993,039) § (328,773,567) %  (301,605919)
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Financial Analysis of MEDCO - continued

As discussed in greater detail below, the majority of MEDCO’s operating income for 2022, 2021and 2020 relate
to its operating facilities.

The following table summarizes MEDCO’s revenues and expenses and changes in net position for the years ended

June 30,:

Operating Revenues:
Operating facilitics

2022

2021

2020

$ 155,283,429

$ 115,681,959

$ 112422362

Lease 545,256 545,255 -
Other property and equipment rentals - - 723,922
Consulting and management fees 1,677,027 2,041,011 1,833,719
Total Operating Revenues 157,505,712 118,268,225 114,980,003
Operating Expenses:
Operating facilities 99,419,870 79,224,410 84,217,021
Rent - - 93,818
Compensation and benefits 1,888,712 1,861,112 1,677,567
Administrative and general 605,425 463,979 455,463
Depreciation and amortization 28,653,453 27,752,401 26,215,282
Total Operating Expenses 130,567,460 109,301,902 112,659,151
Operating Income 26,938,252 8,966,323 2,320,852
Non-operating Revenues and Expenses:
Interest income 681,798 808,084 2,013,600
Interest expense (37,150,896) (35,930,028) (28,024,460)
Settlement income 296,451 36,938 223,821
Gain on extinguishment of management fee payable 61,034,190 - -
Bond issuance costs (290,387) (680,529) (546,302)
Loss on sales and retirements of assets, net (728,880) (368,436) (407,321)
Surplus funds distribution - - (7,305,835)
Net Non-operating Revenues (Expenses) 23,842,276 (36,133,971) (34,046,497)
Change in Net Position 50,780,528 (27,167,648) (31,725,645)
Net Position, beginning of year (328,773,567)  (301,605919)  (269,880,274)
Net Position, end of year $(277,995.039) $(328,773,567) $(301,605,919)
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The change in net position for the years ended June 30, 2022, 2021 and 2020 (after considering the effects of
eliminations and adjustments in consolidation) is detailed by source as follows:

2022 2021 2020
Operating facilities $ 49,166,343 $ (29,166,469) $ (33,468,170)
Other operations 1,614,185 1,998,821 1,742,525
Change in Net Position $ 50,780,528 $ (27,167,648) $ (31,725,645)

Significant factors in the results for the year ended June 30, 2022 include:

e As of June 30, 2022, management has identified CBCC as a “Non-Performing” Project, as defined in
MEDCO?’s loan classification policy. CBCC has been identified as a “Non-Performing” Project after the
June 2014 debt service payment was only partially made and for failure to meet the debt coverage ratio as
required in the trust indenture governing the bonds. Under terms of the CBCC trust indenture, MEDCO is
required to promptly employ a management consultant to submit a written report and recommendations
with respect to the Project. MEDCO has engaged both a project analyst consulting firm and an asset
management/tumaround consultant to evaluate the operations of CBCC. Since May 1, 2014, CBCC has
had a forbearance agreement with the trustee which provides for a partial deferral of interest and principal
payments owed under the bonds. Pursuant to the terms of a third amendment to the amended and restated
forbearance agreement, the forbearance period was extended to December 31, 2022. In accordance with
the terms of the most recent amendment, effective July 1, 2022, a proposed budget through December 31,
2022 was prepared and submitted to the trustee for approval. Upon approval of the budget by the trustee,
the Project was to incur expenses and expend funds only to the extent per category and within the times
set forth in the approved cash flow budget. In addition, any amounts not spent within one month can be
expended in a subsequent month, subject to adjustments as defined in the agreement. The amended and
restated forbearance agreement contains target amounts for gross revenues, net operating income, and
cumulative cash flow. If the Project fails to satisfy these target amounts in any month, it shall constitute a
forbearance termination event. Upon the occurrence of a forbearance termination event, the forbearance
granted shall immediately and automatically terminate, and the Trustee shall have available to it all rights
and remedies available specified under the forbearance agreement, any of the bond documents, or under
applicable law. The amendments to the amended and restated forbearance agreement amend the transfer
of funds to specific reserves in connection with the capital budget, as stipulated in the agreement.
Additional information relating to the status of this Project is provided in Note 13 to the financial
statements.
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As of June 30, 2022, management has identified City Garages, and UMBC, UMAB, Bowie, and Towson
WYV and MH student housing projects as “Watch” projects, as defined in MEDCO’s loan classification
policy. City Garages revenue increased during 2022 as both monthly and transient business returned to
Baltimore’s central business district and the inner harbor. In September 2022, City Garages was removed
from being classified as a “Watch” project. In March 2020, as a result of COVID-19, the University System
of Maryland transitioned all undergraduate in-person instruction to virtual instruction for the remainder of
the Spring 2020 semester. In connection with the University of Maryland’s decision, all universities in the
system closed their on-campus residential halls. During the year ended June 30, 2021 occupancy rates
began to improve as the University System of Maryland institutions offered a mix of both virtual and in-
person instruction. During the year ended June 30, 2022 student housing projects have fully recovered
from the pandemic related difficulties. Per the respective trust indentures, the Projects are each required to
meet a coverage ratio, as defined in the respective trust indenture agreements, as of the last day of each
fiscal year of no less than 1.20 to 1. If in any fiscal year, the coverage ratio is not met, a management
consultant must be employed. In September 2022, UMBC and Bowie were removed from being classified
as a “Watch” project, and Frostburg was added to “Watch” in September 2022. UMAB, Towson WV and
MH, and Frostburg were added to “Watch™ as they did not meet their respective coverage ratios as of June
30, 2022. During the year ending June 30, 2022, MEDCO retained a management consultant for the City
Garages, UMBC, UMAB, Bowie, and Towson WV and MH student housing projects.

Income from operating facilities increased approximately $17,952,000 for the year ended June 30, 2022 in
comparison to the year ended June 30, 2021. This is primarily attributable to CBCC, $12,902,000, and
UMBC, $2,200,000, due to an increase in occupancy causing revenue to increase post COVID-19.
Increases at other operating projects, $844,000, were primarily due to operations having fully recovered
from the pandemic related difficulties, and Bowie Mixed Use, $1,956,000, as the project opened for the
first time in August 2021. These increases are offset by increases in operating facility expenses of
$20,992,000 due to the increase in activity due to operations recovering from COVID-19.

Net Non-operating revenues (expenses) increased $59,976,000. This increase is primarily due to the
recognition of a gain on extinguishment of management fees payable at CBCC, $61,034,000, as an
agreement was reached with the Project manager to forever waive any and all deferred fees and interest
accrued thereon, to which the manager was due under the management agreement that expired on August
31,2021. This increase in net non-operating revenue was partially offset by an increase in interest expense,
$1,232,000, primarily due to a full year of interest expense being recognized in fiscal year 2022 on the
bonds that were issued December 10, 2020 for the construction, furnishing, refurbishing, and equipping of
the Morgan Thurgood Marshall Hall student housing facility.
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Significant factors in the results for the year ended June 30, 2021 include:

As of June 30, 2021, management identified CBCC as a “Non-Performing” Project, as defined in
MEDCO?’s loan classification policy. CBCC has been identified as a “Non-Performing” Project after the
June 2014 debt service payment was only partially made and for failure to meet the debt coverage ratio as
required in the trust indenture governing the bonds. Under terms of the CBCC trust indenture, MEDCO is
required to promptly employ a management consultant to submit a written report and recommendations
with respect to the Project. MEDCO has engaged both a project analyst consulting firm and an asset
management/tumaround consultant to evaluate the operations of CBCC. Since May 1, 2014, CBCC has
had a forbearance agreement with the trustee which provides for a partial deferral of interest and principal
payments owed under the bonds. Pursuant to a fourteenth amendment the forbearance agreement was
amended and extended to June 30, 2021. In addition to providing for a partial deferral of interest and
principal payments owed under the bonds, the agreement allowed for the use of funds and accounts held
under the trust indenture and in the capital reserve fund for payment of specified accounts payable and
operating expenses. In accordance with the terms of the fourteenth amendment, effective December 31,
2020, a proposed budget through June 30, 2021 was prepared and submitted to the trustee for approval.
Upon approval of the budget by the trustee, the Project was to incur expenses and expend funds only to
the extent per category and within the times set forth in the approved cash flow budget. In addition, any
amounts not spent within one month could be expended in a subsequent month, subject to adjustments.
The fourteenth amendment also eliminated, through June 30, 2021, the covenants requiring the Project to
maintain certain levels of production, gross revenue and net operating income and cash flow targets. In
accordance with the terms of the restated and amended forbearance agreement, effective July 1, 2021
through December 31, 2021, a proposed budget through December 31, 2021 was prepared and submitted
to the Trustee for approval. The first amendment to the amended and restated forbearance agreement,
effective August 31, 2021, amends the transfer of funds to specific reserves in connection with the capital
budget, as stipulated in the agreement.
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e As of June 30, 2021, management identified City Garages, UMCP Housing, UMBC, UMAB, Bowie, and
Towson WV and MH student housing projects as “Watch” projects, as defined in MEDCO’s loan
classification policy. City Garages revenue was negatively impacted by reduced parking related to
COVID-19. In March 2020, as a result of COVID-19, the University System of Maryland transitioned all
undergraduate in-person instruction to virtual instruction for the remainder of the Spring 2020 semester.
In connection with the University of Maryland’s decision, all universities in the system closed their on-
campus residential halls. During the year ended June 30, 2021 occupancy rates began to improve as the
University System of Maryland institutions offered a mix of both virtual and in-person instruction. Per the
respective trust indentures, the Projects are each required to meet a coverage ratio, as defined in the
respective trust indenture agreements, as of the last day of each fiscal year of no less than 1.20to 1. If in
any fiscal year, the coverage ratio is not met, a management consultant must be employed. In August 2021,
UMCP Housing was removed from being classified as a “Watch” project. City Garages, UMBC, UMAB,
Bowie, and Towson WV and MH did not meet their respective coverage ratios as of June 30, 2021. During
the year ending June 30, 2021, MEDCO retained a management consultant for the UMCP Housing,
UMBC, UMAB, Bowie, and Towson WV and MH student housing projects. MEDCO engaged a
management consultant for these Projects.

o Income from operating facilities increased approximately $3,260,000 as a result of an increase in revenue
as students started to return to campus as COVID-19 government restrictions were lifted. Operating facility
expenses decreased $4,993,000 primarily due to a decrease in ground rent expense due to increased
deposits to the repair and replacement funds. The net increase in operations is offset by an increase in
depreciation and amortization of $1,463,000 due to the implementation of GASB 87.

e Net Non-operating revenues (expenses) decreased $2,087,000. This decrease was primarily due to an
increase in interest expense, $7,894,000, primarily due to the issuance of bonds for the development of the
Morgan Thurgood Marshall Hall student housing facility, and a decrease in interest income, $1,206,000,
primarily due to a decrease in interest rates on deposits and investments. These decreases were partially
offset by an increase attributable to a decrease in surplus funds distribution expense, $7,306,000, due to
the additional distribution made by UMCP Energy in the prior year to the University of Maryland, College
Park pursuant to the closing of the bond trust accounts upon retirement of the Project’s bonds.

Additional information relating to the operating results of the operating facilities for the years ended June 30, 2022
and 2021 is provided in Note 9 to the financial statements.
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Capital Assets and Debt Administration

Capital Assets and Right to Use Buildings

Costs incurred to acquire, develop and/or improve capital assets and right-to-use buildings were $46,483,000 and
$55,572,000 during the years ended June 30, 2022 and 2021, respectively.

During 2022, projects totaling $262,000, primarily for HVAC repairs, elevator repairs, and replacement of
carpeting, were completed at Bowie. During 2021, projects totaling $74,000, primarily for HVAC repairs and
replacement of carpeting, were completed.

During 2022 and 2021, there were $1,712,000 and $33,352,000, respectively, of construction, development and
equipment expenditures for the Bowie Mixed Use facility for the initial design and construction of the student
housing Project. Proceeds from the 2020 issuance of tax-exempt bonds were used to pay for the cost of issuing the
bonds, fund required reserve deposits and to pay for the development of the Project. The Project opened in August
2021.

During 2022 there were $1,432,000 in capital expenditure at Baltimore City Parking Garages for architectural fees,
slab repairs, construction equipment, elevator repairs and improvements. During 2021 projects totaling $1,143,000
were completed to make improvements to all three of the Baltimore City Parking garages.

During 2022, there were for $1,355,000 in capital expenditures at CBCC for improvements to the facilities and
repairs made to the pier. There were $285,000 in capital expenditures in 2021 for improvements to the facilities.

The major capital asset events during the year ended June 30, 2022 at Morgan were expenditures for the ongoing
construction of the Thurgood Marshall Hall facility, totaling $36,559,000, as well as $251,000 on the replacement
of HVAC units, computers, and furniture and fixtures. The major capital asset events during the year ended June
30, 2021 at Morgan were expenditures for the ongoing construction of the Thurgood Marshall Hall facility, totaling
$14,826,000, as well as $499,000 on new exterior lighting, computers, furniture and fixtures and the replacement
of HVAC units, roofing, water heaters, carpeting and furniture and fixtures.

The major capital asset events during the year ended June 30, 2022 at Salisbury were window, roof, HVAC, carpet,
furniture, and appliance replacement, $2,049,000. The major capital asset events during the year ended June 30,
2021 at Salisbury were window, roof, HVAC, carpet, furniture, and appliance replacement, $1,407,000.

The most significant capital asset events during the year ended June 30, 2022 at Towson WV & MH were the
purchase of fumiture, fixtures and equipment, and the replacement of an HVAC compressor, $10,000. The major
capital asset events during the year ended June 30, 2021 at Towson WV & MH were furniture, fixtures and
equipment, PVI water tanks, and building repairs, $793,000.

The major capital asset events during the year ended June 30, 2022 at UMBC were drywall repairs and insulation,
roof repairs, parking lot rejuvenations, exterior concrete replacement, a roof condenser, appliance and flooring
replacement, $377,000. The major capital asset events during the year ended June 30, 2022 at UMBC were drywall
improvements and insulation, roof improvements, and exterior housing for generators and a roof condenser,
$79,000.
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Capital Assets and Debt Administration - continued

Capital Assets and Right to Use Buildings - continued

The major capital asset events during the year ended June 30, 2022 at UMCP Housing wete the replacement of
support beams, HVAC, heat pump, lighting panel, carpet, tile, furniture, appliances, and drainage system upgrades,
$2,177,000. The major capital asset events during the year ended June 30, 2021 at UMCP Housing were the
replacement of support beams, patio headers, HVAC, heat pump, pool and hot tub pump, carpet, tile, furniture,
appliances, and fire alarm upgrades, $638,000.

The major capital asset events during the year ended June 30, 2022 at University Village were the replacement of
roofing, HVAC systems, furniture and fixtures, security camera installation, and property access control, $449,000,
and construction in progress for kitchen renovations, $242,000. The major capital asset events during the year
ended June 30, 2021 at University Village were the replacement of flooring, furniture and fixtures, and property
access control and computer lab upgrades, $755,000, and construction in progress for kitchen renovations,
$276,000.

Additional information relating to capital assets is provided in Notes 7 and 8 to the financial statements.
Debt

As of June 30, 2022, MEDCO had total bonds and notes payable outstanding of $710,117,000, a decrease of 2.6%
from June 30, 2021. As discussed above, none of the bond or note debt is backed by the full faith and credit of the
State of Maryland or MEDCO.

During 2022, MEDCO issued debt totaling $22,707,000, including an original issue premium and discount, to
finance the development of the Morgan Thurgood Marshall Hall student housing facility. Aggregate principal
payments/reductions on bonds and notes payable during the year were $14,718,000.

As of June 30, 2021, MEDCO had total bonds and notes payable outstanding of $729,099,000, an increase of
10.1% from June 30, 2020. As discussed above, none of the bond or note debt is backed by the full faith and credit
of the State of Maryland or MEDCO.

During 2021, MEDCO issued debt totaling $84,323,000, including an original issue premium and discount, to
finance the development of the Bowie Mixed Use Project. Aggregate principal payments/reductions on bonds and
notes payable during the year were $14,933,000.

Additional information relating to debt and capital lease obligations is provided in Note 10 to the financial
statements.

Contacting Management of MEDCO

This report is designed to provide Maryland citizens and taxpayers, and our customers, clients, investors and
creditors, with a general overview of the finances of MEDCO. If you have questions about this report or need
additional information, including individual Project audited financial statements, contact Maryland Economic
Development Corporation, 7 St. Paul Street, Suite 940, Baltimore, MD 21202.
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Independent Auditors’ Report

To the Board of Directors of
Maryland Economic Development Corporation:

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Maryland Economic Development Corporation
(MEDCO), as of and for the years ended June 30, 2022 and 2021, and the related notes to the financial
statements, as listed in the table of contents.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of MEDCO as of June 30, 2022 and 2021, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the
years then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be independent of MEDCO
and to meet our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to
our audits. We belicve that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion.

Responsibility of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the design,
implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or
events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about MEDCO’s ability to continue as a
going concern for twelve months beyond the financial statement date, including any currently known
information that may raise substantial doubt shortly thereafter.

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’ report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not
a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements are considered material if
there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment
made by a reasonable user based on the financial statements.

Main | 410-403-1500 Toll Free | BOG-832-3008

Address | 910 Ridgebrook Road, Sparks, MD 2152 Visit | www,schgmup,com




In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, we:

e Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures
include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of MEDCQ’s internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the
financial statements.

e Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that
raise substantial doubt about MEDCO’s ability to continue as a going concern for a reasonable period
of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control related matters
that we identified during the audit.

Report on Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the Unites States of America require that the management’s
discussion and analysis on pages 1-13 be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such
information is the responsibility of management and, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is
required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of
financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or
historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of
inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for
consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other
knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or
provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient
evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

SCUR Attest Sanices L.

October 24, 2022
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2021
As of June 30, 2022 ( as restated)
Assets
Current Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 37,358,568 3 45,136,423
Short-term investments 7,592,491 6,406,545
Security deposits 314,321 210,351
Deposits with bond trustees — restricted 23,715,088 30,685,853
Funds for replacement of and additions to
furnishings and equipment 1,476,041 413,932
Loans receivable, net 25,000 25,000
Leases receivable 483,807 459,114
Rent and other receivables, net 11,973,591 5,948,954
Interest receivable, net 161,743 45,058
[nventory 367,151 257,891
Prepaid expenses and other assets 1,682,394 1,614,154
Total Current Assets 85,150,195 91,203,275
Non-current Assets:
Long-term investments 75,000 75,000
Deposits with bond trustees — restricted 96,402,323 129,042,552
Loans receivable, net 50,000 75,000
Leases receivable 3,536,231 4,780,720
Prepaid expenses and other assets 1,242,846 1,316,927
Right-of-use assets, net of accumulated amortization 40,083,999 42,695,157
of $5,196,291 and $2,585,133, respectively
Right-to-use buildings, net of accumulated amortization 331,947,160 305,429,814
of $208,416,083 and $193,526,707, respectively
Capital assets:
Buildings and improvements 194,532,076 194,236,323
Furnishings and equipment 92,036,569 91,670,476
Construction in progress 241,740 381,098
286,810,385 286,287,897
Less: accumulated depreciation and amortization (186,674,226) (179,692,138)
Net Capital Assets 100,136,159 106,595,759
Total Non-current Assets 573,473,718 590,010,929
Total Assets $ 658,623,913 $ 631,214,204
Deferred Outflow of Resources:
Deferred advance refunding costs 4,516,141 5.803,422
Total Deferred Outflow of Resources $ 4,516,141 $ 5,803,422

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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MARYLAND ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION

Statements of Net Position - continued

2021
As of June 30, 2022 ( as restated)
Liabilities and Net Position
Current Liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued expenses h 30,132,188 $ 23,979,270
Sales tax payable 530,720 435,242
Advances 3,137,328 16,516,085
Reserve deposits 8,476,542 7,861,596
Accrued interest 70,334,059 67,609,213
Advance deposits 2,330,165 2,441,334
Security deposits 630,279 661,686
Accrued ground rent 15,167,820 7,483,046
Lease liability 44,271,494 40,679,977
Bonds and notes payable 72,999,872 65,188,499
Deferred management and service fees payable 13,763,906 73,042,800
Total Current Liabilities 261,774,373 305,898,748
Non-current Liabilities:
Lease liability 34,648,217 38,429,944
Bonds and notes payable 637,116,772 663,910,663
Total Non-current Liabilities 671,764,989 702,340,607
Total Liabilities $ 933,539,362 $ 1,008,239,355
Deferred Inflow of Resources:
Rents and fees collected in advance 7,008,655 7,323,701
Deferred advance refunding gains 585,076 228,137
Total Deferred Inflow of Resources $ 7,593,731 $ 7,551,838
Commitments and Contingencies (Notes 12 and 13)
Net Position:
Net investment in capital assets (303,933,664) (325,647,539)
Restricted under trust indentures 79,162,232 120,915,930
Restricted for capital and other purposes 47,703 36,779
Unrestricted-Projects (81,028,466) (149,913,935)
Unrestricted-MEDCO 27,759,156 25,835,198
Total Net Position $ (277,993,039) $ (328,773,567)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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MARYLAND ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION

Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position

2021
For the Years Ended June 30, 2022 { as restated)
Operating Revenues:
Operating facilities 155,283,429 115,681,959
Lease 545,256 545,255
Consulting and management fees 1,677,027 2,041,011
Total Operating Revenues 157,505,712 118,268,225
Operating Expenses:
Operating facilities 99,419,870 79,224,410
Compensation and benefits 1,888,712 1,861,112
Administrative and general 605,425 463,979
Depreciation and amortization 28,653,453 27,752,401
Total Operating Expenses 130,567,460 109,301,902
Operating Income 26,938,252 8,966,323
Non-operating Revenues and Expenses:
Interest income 681,798 808,084
Interest expense (37,150,896) (35,930,028)
Settlement income 296,451 36,938
Gain on extinguishment of management fee payable 61,034,190 -
Bond issuance costs (290,387) (680,529)
Loss on sales and retirements of assets, net (728,880) (368,436)
Net Non-operating Revenues (Expenses) 23,842,276 (36,133,971)
Change in Net Position 50,780,528 (27,167,648)

Net Position, beginning of year, as restated

(328,773,567)

(301,605,919)

Net Position, end of year

(277,993,039)

(328,773,567)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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MARYLAND ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION

Statements of Cash Flows

2021
For the Years Ended June 30, 2022 ( as restated)
Cash Flows from Operating Activitics:
Cash received from leases $ 1,219,794 $ 545255
Cash received from consulting and management fees 1,560,590 2,480,665
Cash received from guests 39,312,856 24,059,445
Cash received from customer charges 17,242,526 17,782,050
Cash received from parkers 7,226,028 5,674,544
Cash received from tenants 83,778,388 62,530,202
Cash received from tax increment financing 2,334,573 2,109,726
Cash paid for operating expenses (3,469,183) (1,115,229)

Cash paid for expenses of operating facilitics

(84,463 ,419) (62,601,062)

Net Cash and Cash Equivalents Provided by Operating Activities

Cash Flows from Non-capital Financing Activities:
Advances

64,742,153 51,465,596

(10,811,232) (28,441,206)

Interest payments on bonds and notes payable (230,517) (240,530)
Principal payments on bonds and notes payable (344,812) (349,084)
Net Cash and Cash Equivalents Used in Non-capital Financing Activities (11,386,561) (29,030,820)
Cash Flows from Capital and Related Financing Activities:
Payments of construction expenditures (3,620,524) (2,452,683)
Right-to-use buildings expenditures (42,650,833) (49,086,560)
Construction, development and equipment expenditures (2,060,612) (1,606,226)
Proceeds from sale of capital assets 9,510 760
Refunding of bonds and notes payable (23,875,699) -
Proceeds from issuance of bonds and notes payable 22,707,071 84,322,721
Bond issuance expenditures (290,387) (680,529)
Net funding of funds for replacement of and additions to furnishings and equipment (1,062,109) 24,450
Lease payments (190,210) (84,176)
Interest paid (35,647,291) (22,171,794)
Principal payments on bonds and notes payable (14,373,100) (14.583.416)
Net Cash and Cash Equivalents Used in Capital and Related Financing Activities (101,054,184) (6,317,453)
Cash Flows from Investing Activities:

Princtpal payments on loans receivable 25,000 25,000
Reserve deposits 614,946 334,096
Proceeds from settlement 296,451 36,938
Net sales (purchases) of deposits with bond trustees - restricted 39,610,994 (40,689,724)
Net purchases of investments (1,185,946) (205,054)
Interest received 559.292 843,036
Net Cash and Cash Equivalents Provided by (Used In) Investing Activities 39,920,737 (39.655.708)

Net Decrease in Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and Cash Equivalents, beginning of ycar

(1,777,855) (23,538,385)

45,136,423 68,674,808

Cash and Cash Equivalents, end of year

$ 37,358,568 $ 45,136,423

The accompanying noles are an integral part of these financial statements
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MARYLAND ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION

Statements of Cash Flows - continued
2021
For the Years Ended June 30, 2022 ( as restated)

Reconciliation of operating income to net cash and cash equivalents
provided by operating activities:
Operating income $ 26,938,252 $ 8,966,323
Adjustment to reconcile operating income to net cash and cash equivalents
provided by operating activities:

Depreciation and amortization 28,653,453 27,752,401
Provision for doubtful accounts 738,839 3,595,426
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Tenant security deposits (103,970) 492,667
Leases receivable 1,219,796 566,425
Rent and other receivables (7,179,728) (2,899,954)
Inventory (109,260) 3,422
Prepaid expenses and other assets 114,251 216,078
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 7,186,786 11,402,430
Sales tax payable 95,478 376,428
Advances (38,895) (83,809)
Advance deposits (111,169) 221,757
Security deposits (31,407) 303,796
Accrued ground rent 3,227,976 683,046
Deferred inflow of resources - rents and fees collected in advance 4,141,751 (123,966)
Other liabilities - (6,874)
Net cash and cash equivalents provided by operating activities $ 64,742,153 $ 51,465,596
Schedule of non-cash capital and related financing activities:
Recognition of leases receivable $ - $ 5,806,259
Recognition of deferred inflow of resources - 5,806,259
Recognition of right-of-use asset - 45,280,290
Recognition of lease liability - 79,120,000
Accrued interest expense on the lease liability 5,017,153 4,211,621
Derecognition of accrued ground rent, deferred rent and lease incentives - 55,260,168
Gain on extinguishment of management fee payable 61,034,190 -
Loss on sales and retirements of assets, net (738,390) (369,196)
Construction, development, and equipment expenditures included in
accounts payable and accrued expenses 1,780,883 4,879,036
Retirement of bond premium (516,437) -
Amortization of lease allowance 28,361 29,828
Amortization of issue premium on bonds 2,775,444 2,781,464
Amortization of issue discount on bonds 195,903 200,638
Amortization of deferred inflow of resources - deferred advance refunding gains 411,215 26,831
Amortization of deferred outflow of resources - deferred advance refunding costs 1,287,281 842,725

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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MARYLAND ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION

Notes to Financial Statements
For the Years Ended June 30, 2022 and 2021

1. ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Organization

Maryland Economic Development Corporation (MEDCO) is a body corporate and political and a public
instrumentality of the State of Maryland that was created in 1984 by an act of the Maryland General Assembly.
MEDCO?’s purpose is to attract new business and encourage expansion of existing businesses in Maryland
through the development, expansion and/or modernization of facilities. In fulfilling this purpose, MEDCO
owns and leases certain properties and makes loans to organizations that require financing to acquire or develop
properties. MEDCO also serves as a consultant or development manager on certain projects.

MEDCO issues limited-obligation revenue bonds and notes to provide capital financing for projects. Most of
the bonds and notes are conduit debt obligations issued for specific third parties in MEDCO’s name. In most
of these cases, the related asset, liabilities, revenues, expenses and cash flows are not included in MEDCO’s
financial statements, as MEDCO has no obligation for the debt beyond the resources provided under the related
loan with the party on whose behalf the debt was issued. The bonds and notes not issued for specific third
parties primarily finance operating facilities of MEDCO. These bonds and notes are payable solely from the
revenues of the respective facilities as defined in the related bond indentures.

MEDCQ is governed by a twelve-member board appointed by the Governor. MEDCO qualifies for tax-exempt
status under Section 501(c)(4) of the Internal Revenue Code and Section 10-104 of the Tax-General Article of
the Annotated Code of Maryland. Accordingly, no provision for income taxes or income tax benefit has been
recorded.

Basis of Presentation

The accompanying financial statements present the financial position, changes in financial position and cash
flows of MEDCO. As a special purpose government entity engaged solely in business-type activities, MEDCO
follows enterprise fund reporting; accordingly, the financial statements are presented using the economic
resources measurement focus and accrual basis of accounting wherein revenues are recognized when earned
and expenses are recognized when incurred. Also, in preparing its financial statements, MEDCO has adopted
Government Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 62, Codification of Accounting and
Financial Reporting Guidance Contained in Pre-November 30, 1989 FASB and AICPA Pronouncements.
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MARYLAND ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION

Notes to Financial Statements
For the Years Ended June 30, 2022 and 2021

1. ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES — continued
Basis of Presentation — continued

MEDCO previously elected to report its conduit debt as allowed under GASB Interpretation No.2, Disclosure
of Conduit Debt Obligations. During the year ended June 30, 2022, MEDCO adopted GASB Statement No.
91, Conduit Debt Obligations (GASB 91), and elected to report its conduit debt under GASB 91. The term
conduit debt obligations refers to certain limited-obligation revenue bonds or notes issued by MEDCO for the
express purpose of providing capital financing for a specific third party that is not a part of MEDCO’s financial
reporting entity. Although conduit debt obligations bear the name of MEDCO, MEDCO has no obligation for
such debt beyond the resources provided by financing leases or loans with the third parties on whose behalf
they are issued. Since these conduit debt obligations do not constitute a liability of MEDCO, conduit debt
obligations, the related assets, revenues, expenses and cash flows are excluded from MEDCO’s financial
statements.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial
statements and the reported amount of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could
differ from those estimates.

Recently Adopted Accounting Principles

Effective July 1, 2020, MEDCO adopted GASB Statement No. 87, Leases (GASB 87), which modifies the
guidance for lease accounting. Under this Statement, a lessee is required to recognize a lease liability and an
intangible right-to-use lease asset, with the exception of leases with an original term of 12 months or less,
thereby enhancing the relevance and consistency of information about governments’ leasing activities. The
lease liability should be measured at the present value of payments expected to be made during the lease term
(less any lease incentives). The lease asset should be measured at the amount of the initial measurement of the
lease liability, plus any payments made to the lessor at or before the commencement of the lease term and
certain direct costs. A lessor is required to recognize a lease receivable and deferred inflow of resources. The
lease receivable is measured at the present value of lease payments expected to be received during the lease
term. The deferred inflow of resources is measured at the fair value of the lease receivable plus any payments
received at or before commencement of the lease term that relates to future periods. MEDCO used the
retrospective approach to adopt this guidance, which requires a restatement for all prior periods presented (Note
2).
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MARYLAND ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION

Notes to Financial Statements
For the Years Ended June 30, 2022 and 2021

1. ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued
Recently Adopted Accounting Principles — continued

As aresult of the adoption of GASB 87, MEDCO recognized a lease liability of $79,120,000, which represents
the present value of remaining lease payments, and a right-of-use-asset of $45,280,290 as of July 1, 2020. The
right-of-use-asset is measured at an amount equal to the lease liability, plus any payments made to the lessor
at or before the commencement of the lease. MEDCO recognized a deferred inflow of resources of $5,806,259,
which represents the present value of remaining lease payments to be received, and a lease receivable of
$5,806,259 as of July 1, 2020.

Effective July 1, 2021, MEDCO adopted GASB 91. The objective of this Statement is to provide a single
method of reporting conduit debt obligations by issuers and eliminate diversity in practice associated with (1)
commitments extended by issuers, (2) arrangements associated with conduit debt obligations, and (3) related
note disclosures. This Statement also clarifies the existing definition of a conduit debt obligation and improves
required note disclosures. MEDCO used the modified retrospective approach to adopt this guidance. There was
no effect on operating income or net position as a result of the adoption of GASB 91.

Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncement

In May 2020, the GASB issued Statement No. 96, Subscription-Based Information Technology Arrangements
(GASB 96). The objective of this Statement is to provide guidance on the accounting and financial reporting
for subscription-based information technology arrangements (SBITA’s) for government end users. Under this
Statement, a government generally should recognize a right-to-use subscription asset—an intangible asset—
and a corresponding subscription liability. This new guidance is effective for fiscal years beginning after June
15, 2022 and should be applied prospectively. Early adoption is permitted. MEDCO is currently evaluating
the timing of its adoption and the impact of adopting the new Statement on the accompanying financial
statements.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Short-term investments with maturities of three months or less on the date of purchase are classified as cash
equivalents, except that any such investments purchased with funds on deposit with the bond trustee are
classified with such deposits.

Accounts are guaranteed by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) up to $250,000 per depositor.
MEDCO periodically maintains cash balances in excess of FDIC coverage. Management considers this to be a
normal business risk.

MEDCO is required by Section 17-101(d) of the Local Government Article of the Annotated Code of Maryland
to collateralize deposits in banks in excess of federal deposit insurance. Satisfactory collateral is enumerated
at Section 6-202 of the State Finance and Procurement Article of the Code. As of June 30, 2022 and 2021, bank
deposits were properly collateralized.

As of June 30, 2022 and 2021, $16,054,984 and $26,026,119, respectively, of cash and cash equivalents were
restricted under third party agreements and not available to pay general operating expenses of MEDCO.
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MARYLAND ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION

Notes to Financial Statements
For the Years Ended June 30, 2022 and 2021

1. ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued
Investments

Investments include certificates of deposit, U.S. Government Agency bills, notes and bonds, and money market
funds. Investments are recorded as either short-term or long-term in the accompanying statements of net
position based on the contractual maturity date. Certain U.S. Government Agency term notes classified as
short-term investments have maturities that extend beyond one year, however, management has not expressed
an intention to hold these investments to maturity.

Security Deposits

Security deposits are held in checking and money market accounts and represent cash restricted under state
law. As of June 30, 2022, security deposits were overfunded at Morgan View and Thurgood Marshall Hall
Student Housing at Morgan State University (Morgan), $113,255, and University Village at Sheppard Pratt
(University Village), $37,587. As of June 30, 2021, security deposits were overfunded at Morgan View, $1,732,
and University Village, $37,433. The overfundings are a result of the timing of receipts and refunds that are
transacted in the operating accounts of the facilities. Periodically, funds are transferred from cash and cash
equivalents to security deposits to meet the minimum funding requirements.

Fund for Replacement of and Additions to Furnishings and Equipment

The Hyatt Hotels Corporation of Maryland (Hyatt) management agreement for the Chesapeake Bay
Conference Center (CBCC) requires that a reserve fund for replacement of and additions to furnishings and
equipment be established. An interest-bearing account is maintained for the fund. As of June 30, 2022 and
2021, all bank deposits related to the reserve fund for replacement of furnishings and equipment were properly
collateralized in accordance with Section 17-101(d) of the Local Government Article of the Annotated Code
of Maryland.

Pursuant to the Hyatt management agreement, the amount to be contributed to the fund was equal to 4% of
gross receipts, as defined, through June 30, 2008, and 5% from July 1, 2008 through June 30, 2011. From July
1, 2011 through July 1, 2015, the agreement provided for 5% plus additional amounts not in excess of 2% of
gross receipts (as MEDCO and Hyatt deem reasonably necessary to meet the current or anticipated capital
expenditure needs of the Hotel). Pursuant to a forbearance agreement, effective May 1, 2014 and most recently
amended and restated effective July 1, 2021 and during the forbearance period, the amount to be contributed
to the fund is capped at 5% of gross receipts. As of June 30, 2022 and 2021, the reserve fund was underfunded
by approximately $1,341,000 and $1,259,000, respectively. The shortfall at June 30, 2022 is due to timing of
the remittance of contributions for June’s revenues and the remaining shortfall as of June 30, 2021. The
shortfall at June 30, 2021 is the result of a lack of funds available due to the limitations on occupancy and
operations in place due to COVID-19 restrictions. As of October 24, 2022, the shortfall at June 30, 2022 has
been funded. As of October 24, 2022, the remaining shortfall of approximately $1,028,000 from 2021 has not
been funded.
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MARYLAND ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION

Notes to Financial Statements
For the Years Ended June 30, 2022 and 2021

1. ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued
Loans Receivable

Loans are stated at their uncollected principal balances, reduced by unearned income. Loans are classified as
non-accrual when they become past due for ninety days. A loan remains in non-accrual status until it becomes
current as to both principal and interest and the borrower demonstrates the ability to pay and remain current.
MEDCO utilizes the allowance method to provide for doubtful accounts based upon a review of past-due loans
and historical collection experience. Loan receivables are written off when it is determined the amounts are
uncollectible. The balance of the allowance for doubtful accounts was $730,908 as of June 30, 2022 and 2021.

Leases Receivable

Lease receivable consists primarily of future payments expected to be received under various leases whereby
MEDCO is the lessor, under GASB 87 (Note 5). There is no allowance for the lease receivable recorded as of
June 30, 2022 and 2021.

Rent and Other Receivables

Rent and other receivables consist of amounts due for rent, management fees, and construction advances.
Certain operating facilities extend credit to customers without requiring collateral. For certain contracts, the
operating facilities require advance deposits prior to services being performed. The operating facilities utilize
the allowance method to provide for doubtful accounts based upon a review of past-due accounts and historical
collection experience.

Receivables are written off when it is determined amounts are uncollectible. The balance of the allowance for
doubtful accounts as of June 30, 2022 and 2021 totaled $5,200,984 and $4,919,098, respectively.

Inventory

Inventory, consisting primarily of food and beverage, is stated at the lower of cost or market. Cost is generally
determined by the first-in, first-out (FIFO) method.

Service Concession Arrangements

MEDCO assists in the development of various student housing projects for the University System of Maryland.
The land underlying the Projects is leased from the State of Maryland and title to the Projects will revert to the
universities upon termination of the ground leases. In accordance with GASB Statement No. 60, Accounting
and Financial Reporting for Service Concession Arrangements (GASB 60), the arrangement between MEDCO
and the universities qualifies as a service concession arrangement.
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MARYLAND ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION

Notes to Financial Statements
For the Years Ended June 30, 2022 and 2021

1. ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued
Service Concession Arrangements — continued

MEDCO also assisted in the development of a student housing project for Capitol Technology University. The
land underlying the project is subleased from CTU Foundation, Inc. (CTU Foundation) and leased from Capitol
Technology University and title to the Project will revert to CTU Foundation upon termination of the sublease.
In accordance with GASB 60, the arrangement between MEDCO and CTU Foundation qualifies as a service
concession arrangement.

MEDCO also assists in the operations of three parking garages for the City of Baltimore. The land underlying
the Project is leased from the City of Baltimore and title to the Project will revert to the City of Baltimore upon
termination of the lease. In accordance with GASB 60, the arrangement between MEDCO and the City of
Baltimore qualifies as a service concession arrangement.

MEDCO will operate and collect revenues from the Projects for the duration of the lease terms. GASB 60
requires that the Projects recognize the cost of the student housing facilities and parking garages as an intangible
asset, and amortize the asset using the straight line method over the shorter of the estimated useful life or the
life of the ground lease agreement. The intangible asset is reflected as right-to-use buildings in the
accompanying statements of net position as of June 30, 2022 and 2021.

Service concession arrangements are evaluated for impairment on an annual basis under GASB Statement No.
51, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Impairment of Intangibles (GASB 51). GASB 51 requires an
evaluation of prominent events or changes in circumstances affecting intangibles to determine whether
impairment of an intangible has occurred. Such events or changes in circumstances that may be indicative of
impairment include expedited deterioration of an associated tangible asset, changes in the terms or status of a
contract associated with an intangible asset, and a change from an indefinite to a finite useful life. As of June
30, 2022 and 2021, management does not believe that any of the service concession arrangements of MEDCO
meet the criteria for impairment as set forth in GASB 51.

Right-of-Use-Assets and Amortization

MEDCO has adopted a policy of capitalizing right-of-use assets held under lease liabilities as defined by GASB
87. These assets inctude leased facilities and equipment. The leased assets are recorded at the present value of
the lease liability and amortized using a systematic and rational manner over the shorter of the lease term or
useful life of the underlying asset. Right-of-use assets are evaluated for impairment on an annual basis. As of
June 30, 2022 and 2021, management does not believe that any of the right-of-use assets of MEDCO meet the
criteria for impairment.
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MARYLAND ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION

Notes to Financial Statements
For the Years Ended June 30, 2022 and 2021

1. ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued
Capital Assets and Depreciation and Amortization

Capital assets are carried at cost including interest, carrying charges, salaries and related costs incurred during
the construction phase, and pre-construction costs, less accumulated depreciation and amortization.
Depreciation generally is computed on the straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the assets.
Useful lives are 40 years or the life of the operating lease for buildings and 3 to 15 years for furnishings and
equipment. Improvements are generally amortized over the lesser of the terms of the related leases or the useful
lives of the assets. Maintenance and repairs are expensed as incurred. Capital assets are evaluated for
impairment on an annual basis under GASB Statement No. 42, Accounting and Financial Reporting for
Impairment of Capital Assets and for Insurance Recoveries (GASB 42). GASB 42 requires an evaluation of
prominent events or changes in circumstances affecting capital assets to determine whether impairment of a
capital asset has occurred. Such events or changes in circumstances that may be indicative of impairment
include evidence of physical damage, enactment or approval of laws or regulations or other changes in
environmental factors, technological changes or evidence of obsolescence, changes in the manner or duration
of use of a capital asset, and construction stoppage. As of June 30, 2022 and 2021, management does not
believe that any of the capital assets of MEDCO meet the criteria for impairment as set forth in GASB 42.
Acquisition and development, including interest on related debt, are expensed as incurred. All costs are
classified as construction in progress until the property is ready for its intended use, at which time the
accumulated costs are transferred to the appropriate operating property or other accounts.

Reserve Deposits

Reserve deposits consist of amounts collected from the University of Maryland College Park (UMCP) for the
UMCP Energy Project, to be used in accordance with the Project’s respective service and management
agreements. Reserve deposits totaled $8,476,542 and $7,861,596 as of June 30, 2022 and 2021, respectively.

Security Deposits Liabilities

As of June 30, 2022 and 2021, security deposits had been collected from certain tenants and licensees. In some
operating facilities the security deposit is refunded to the tenant with interest upon termination of the lease or
license, provided no damages, claims or other charges are outstanding on the tenant’s account. In other
operating facilities the security deposit is applied to the tenant’s first month’s rent. Security deposits totaled
$630,279 and $661,686 as of June 30, 2022 and 2021, respectively.
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Notes to Financial Statements
For the Years Ended June 30, 2022 and 2021

Advances

1. ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

Advances represent funds received from third parties, which are non-interest bearing and are to be repaid or
utilized in future years. Advances as of June 30, 2022 and 2021 are as follows:

Respective Operating Facility Advancer of Funds 2022 2021

MEDCO - for the benefit of Maryland State Archives $ 894,146 $ 349,727
Maryland State Archives

MEDCO - for the benefit of Maryland National Park and - 1,640
Maryland National Park and Planning ~ Planning Commission
Commission

MEDCO - for the benefit of Montgomery County 382 -
Maryland Department of Health

MEDCO - for the benefit of University of ~ University of Maryland 42,700 427751
Maryland College Park Child Care College Park
Facility

MEDCO - for the benefit of University of ~ University of Maryland, Baltimore - 12,686
Maryland, Baltimore Community
Engagement Center

MEDCO - for the benefit of University of ~ University of Maryland 591,180 9,919,171
Maryland College Park City Hall College Park
Project

MEDCO - for the benefit of National Institute of Standards 300,259 389913
National Institute of Standards and and Technology
Technology

MEDCO - for the benefit of National Park Service, 1,308,661 3,232,672
National Park Service US Department of Interior

Christa McAuliffe Student Housing at Bowie State University - 3,062
Bowie State University

Bowie Mixed Use Building at Bowie State University - 2,528,630
Bowie State University

Fayette Square Student Housing at University of Maryland, Baltimore - 35,833
University of Maryland, Baltimore

Total Advances $ 3,137328 $16,516,085
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MARYLAND ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION

Notes to Financial Statements
For the Years Ended June 30, 2022 and 2021

1. ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued
Net Position

Net position is presented as either net investment in capital assets, restricted under trust indentures, restricted
for capital and other purposes or unrestricted. Net investment in capital assets represents the difference between
capital assets and right-to-use buildings and the related debt obligations. Net position restricted under trust
indentures represents the remaining net assets of the operating facilities as all surplus funds are restricted as to
their use under the terms of the respective trust indentures. The restricted for capital and other purposes
component of net position represents funds held for use at the direction of the respective contributing third
party. The unrestricted components of net position represent the net assets available for future operations,
including Projects with a negative net position. The unrestricted components of net position include unrestricted
— MEDCO and unrestricted — Projects. Unrestricted net position is reported in this format as MEDCO has no
obligation to provide funding for Projects with a negative unrestricted net position.

Deferred Outflows and Inflows of Resources

A deferred outflow of resources represents a consumption of net position that applies to a future period and
will not be recognized as an outflow of resources (expense) until a future period. As of June 30, 2022 and
2021, MEDCO recognized deferred advance refunding costs as a deferred outflow of resources on the
accompanying statements of net position.

A deferred inflow of resources represents an acquisition of net position that applies to a future period and will
not be recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until that time. As of June 30, 2022 and 2021, MEDCO
recognized deferred advance refunding gains, and rents and fees collected in advance, which do not meet the
availability criteria, as a deferred inflow of resources on the accompanying statements of net position.

Revenue Recognition

Revenues related to the leasing of apartments are recognized monthly over the terms of the leases. Revenues
related to leasing of office buildings and other facilities are recognized in accordance with GASB 87 (Note 5).
Revenues related to hotel room rentals, food and beverage sales and spa services are recognized when services
are delivered. Revenues related to the delivery of energy to the University of Maryland are recognized upon
delivery of services in accordance with the energy services agreement up to a maximum amount per year for
capital recovery charges as defined in the related trust indenture. Revenue from parking fees is collected and
recognized daily for transient parkers and monthly for long-term parkers as stipulated in their agreement.
Revenue billed or received but not earned is shown as deferred inflow of resources in the accompanying
statements of net position. All other revenue is recognized when the service is provided.

Rents and Fees Collected in Advance

Rents and fees collected in advance represent amounts received for future rental periods on leases or parking
agreements in effect as of June 30, 2022 and 2021.
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1. ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

Advertising Costs

Advertising costs are expensed as incurred. Advertising expense totaled $1,167,677 and $800,745 for the years
ended June 30, 2022 and 2021, respectively.

Classification of Revenues and Expenses

Revenues and expenses related to the day-to-day activities of MEDCO are reported as operating revenues and
expenses. Other revenue and expenses, consisting primarily of interest income and expense, gains and losses
on sales and retirements of assets, settlement income, gain on extinguishment of management fee payable and

bond issuance costs, are reported as non-operating revenues and expenses.

Reclassification

Certain amounts in the prior year’s financial statements have been reclassified to conform to the current year
presentation. The reclassification had no effect on previously reported revenues, expenses and changes in net
position or net position.

Subsequent Events

MEDCO has evaluated for disclosure any subsequent events through October 24, 2022, the date the financial
statements were available to be issued, and determined there were no material events that warrant disclosure.
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For the Years Ended June 30, 2022 and 2021

2. RESTATEMENT

The accompanying financial statements as of and for the year ended June 30, 2021 have been restated to
recognize the impact of GASB 87. The effects of the restatement as of and for the year ended June 30, 2021

are as follows:

As Previously

Financial Statement Line Item Effect of Restatement As Restated
Reported

Leases receivable, current $ - $ 459,114 $ 459114
Receivables under direct financing leases, current 32,855 (32,855) -
Interest receivable, net 25,462 19,596 45,058
Leases receivable, non-current - 4,780,720 4,780,720
Receivables under direct financing leases, non-current 974451 (974,451) -
Right-of-use-assets, net - 42,695,157 42,695,157
Accrued interest (47,124,650) (20,484,563) (67,609,213)
Accrued ground rent (62,432,147) 54,949,101 (7,483,046)
Lease liability, current - (40,679,977) (40,679,977)
Lease liability, non-current - (38,429,944) (38,429,944)
Deferred inflow of resources 3,217,831 4,334,007 7,551,838
Lease revenue - 545,255 545,255
Depreciation and amortization 25,167,268 2,585,133 27,752,401
Operating income 5,280,001 3,686,322 8,966,323
Interest income 562,346 245,738 808,084
Interest expense (30,486,400) (5,/443,628) (35,930,028)
Net position, end of year (327,052,525) (1,721,042) (328,773,567)
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3. DEPOSITS WITH BOND TRUSTEES — RESTRICTED

Pursuant to the provisions of the trust indentures relating to certain bonds payable (Note 10), deposits with
bond trustees include the following reserve funds and restricted accounts as of June 30,:

2022 2021
Current Assets:
Working capital and operating expense funds $ 677,515 $ 172,660
Revenue funds 6,653,112 6,690,392
Interest funds 8,399,083 7,162,514
Principal funds 7,069,382 7,754,322
Construction funds - 2
Other funds 915,996 8,905,963
Current portion 23,715,088 30,685,853
Non-current Assets:
Debt service reserve funds 42.931,449 43,068,814
Surplus funds 9,099,641 959,544
Repairs and replacement funds 13,870,501 11,350,742
Construction funds 23,736,155 60,550,045
Operating reserve funds 2,595,745 2,580,978
Capital reserve funds 3494714 4,649,289
Other funds 674,118 5,883,140
Non-current portion 96,402,323 129,042,552
Total deposits with bond trustees $ 120,117,411 $ 159,728,405

The trust indentures authorize MEDCO or its trustee banks to invest the deposits as detailed under Credit Risk
below. Interest earned on these investments totaled approximately $384,000 and $424,000 for the years ended
June 30, 2022 and 2021, respectively. Investments of deposits with trustees are carried at fair value and include
non-participating investment contracts (i.e., contracts which are not able to realize market-based increases or
decreases in value under any circumstances) for which cost approximates fair value due to the nature of the
contract. Investments of deposits with trustees are summarized as follows as of June 30,:

2022 2021
Purchase and resale agreements:
Bearing interest at rates from 5.76% to 6.36% and
maturing through June 1, 2031 $ 3,765,830 $ 3,765,830
Certificate of deposit maturing in semi-annual installments from
July 1, 2020 through July 1, 2022 and bearing interest at 0.67% - 3,315,983
Money market funds:
United States government money market funds 116,351,581 152,646,592
Total deposits with bond trustees $ 120,117,411 $ 159,728,405
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3. DEPOSITS WITH BOND TRUSTEES — RESTRICTED - continued

The credit ratings of these investments were rated between AA1 and AA2 by Moody’s and A+ by Standard
and Poor’s as of June 30, 2022. The credit ratings of these investments were rated between AAA and A2 by
Moody’s and AA and A+ by Standard and Poor’s as of June 30, 2021.

The deposits with bond trustees are subject to certain risks including the following:

Interest Rate Risk — The trustees have limited investments to money market and mutual funds that invest in
U.S. government securities that can be liquidated at any time to meet the cash flow requirements of MEDCO,
short term U.S. treasury notes which are subject to minimal interest rate risk due to their short term nature and
fixed rate investment contracts and repurchase agreements that are guaranteed as to the face value of the
investments as a means of managing interest rate risk. As a result, MEDCO is not subject to interest rate risk.

Credit Risk — Trust indentures generally limit MEDCO’s investments to obligations of the United States of
America (Government Obligations) and certain defined federal agencies obligations provided they are backed
by the full faith and credit of the United States of America, are not callable at the option of the obligor prior to
maturity and are not subject to redemption at less than the par amount thereof; certificates of deposit and time
deposits with commercial banks, trust companies or savings and loan associations secured by Government
Obligations; obligations guaranteed as to principal and interest by the State of Maryland or any department,
agency, political subdivision or unit thereof; United States dollar denominated deposit accounts with
commercial banks in the State of Maryland; bonds or other obligations of any state of the United States of
America, or of any agency, instrumentality or local government unit of any such state which are not callable at
the option of the obligor prior to maturity; general obligations of states; investment agreements; repurchase
agreements for Government Obligations; guaranteed investment contracts; commercial paper; public sector
pool funds so long as MEDCO’s deposit does not exceed 5% of the aggregate pool balance at any time; and
money market or short-term Government Obligations. As defined in the trust indentures, certain investments
listed above must meet specific requirements to be a qualifying investment, such as high rating qualifications
based on information from the major rating agencies, collateralization requirements, guaranteed repayment,
and maturity requirements. MEDCO’s investments were in compliance with these limitations as of June 30,
2022 and 2021.

Conceniration of Credit Risk —-MEDCO’s investment policy does not limit the amount that may be invested in
any one issuer except for public sector pool funds as described under Credit Risk above. MEDCO held no

investments in public sector pool funds as of June 30, 2022 and 2021.

Custodial Risk — MEDCO is not subject to custodial risk because mutual funds are not evidenced by securities
that exist in physical form and all other deposits are held in MEDCO’s name.
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3. DEPOSITS WITH BOND TRUSTEES — RESTRICTED - continued

The trust indentures require certain of the Projects to establish renewal and replacement funds to provide cash
reserves that will fund future capital additions and repairs and replacement of furnishings and equipment.
These funds are to be segregated in a separate account within the trusts. As of June 30, 2022 the repair and
replacement funds were underfunded at CBCC, $313,000, Edgewood Commons Student Housing at Frostburg
State University (Frostburg), $12,500, West Village (Towson WV) and Millennium Hall (Towson MH)
Student Housing at Towson University, $1,416,000, Fayette Square Student Housing at University of
Maryland, Baltimore (UMAB), $268,000, and University Village, $597,400. As of June 30, 2021 the repair
and replacement funds were underfunded at Christa McAuliffe Student Housing at Bowie State University
(Bowie), $635,000, CBCC, $1,259,000, Frostburg, $286,000, Towson WV and Towson MH Student Housing
at Towson University, $1,619,000, Walker Avenue Student Housing at University of Maryland, Baltimore
County (UMBC), $469,000, and University Village, $533,000. As of October 24, 2022, the shortfall at June
30, 2022 has been funded for CBCC.

Investments are measured and reported at fair value and are classified and disclosed in one of the following
categories:

Level 1 — Quoted prices are available in active markets for identical investments as of the reporting date.

Level 2— Pricing inputs are other than quoted prices in active markets, which are either directly or
indirectly observable as of the reporting date, and fair value is determined through the use of
models or other valuation methodologies.

Level 3 — Pricing inputs are unobservable for the investment and include situations where there is little,
if any, market activity for the investment. The inputs into the determination of fair value
require significant management judgment or estimation.

The following table sets forth by level, within the fair value hierarchy, MEDCO’s investments at fair value as
of June 30, 2022:

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Investments by fair value level
Debt securities
Purchase and resale agreements $ - $ 3765830 $ - § 3.765.830
Total investments by fair value level $ - $ 3765830 $ - $ 3,765,830
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3. DEPOSITS WITH BOND TRUSTEES - RESTRICTED - continued

The following table sets forth by level, within the fair value hierarchy, MEDCO’s investments at fair value as
of June 30, 2021:

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Investments by fair value level
Debt securities
Purchase and resale agreements $ - $ 3765830 §$ - $ 3,765,830
Certificates of deposit - 3,315,983 - 3,315,983
Total investments by fair value level $ - $ 7081813 §$ - $ 7,081,813

As described above, MEDCO’s Level 1 and Level 2 investments are required to be invested in accordance
with the trust indenture. As such they must meet specific requirements to be a qualifying investment, such as
high rating qualifications, collateralization requirements, guaranteed repayment and maturity requirements.
MEDCO’s investments were in compliance with these limitations as of June 30, 2022 and 2021.

MEDCO also invests in a money market fund that has a remaining maturity of one year or less at the time of
purchase. The investment in this fund is valued at cost, which approximates fair value, and is excluded from
the scope of GASB 72, Fair Value Measurement and Application, and totaled $116,351,581 and $156,646,592
as of June 30, 2022 and 2021, respectively.

4. LOANS RECEIVABLE
The loans receivable are due in periodic installments (generally monthly or quarterly) and generally provide
for payments of principal and interest on the same terms as the debt issued to finance them. Substantially all of

the loans have been assigned as security for the related notes or revenue bonds payable (Note 10).

Future payments on the loans receivable are due as follows as of June 30, 2022:

Total Principal Interest
2023 $ 28,000 $ 25,000 $ 3,000
2024 27,000 25,000 2,000
2025 26,000 25,000 1,000
Total $ 81,000 $ 75,000 $ 6,000

As of June 30, 2022 and 2021, there was one loan receivable totaling $730,908 recorded in the accompanying
financial statements, on non-accrual status and fully reserved. Balances due under this loan are not reflected in
the table above.
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5. LEASES RECEIVABLE

The leasing operations of MEDCO consist primarily of the leasing of office buildings and other facilities.

During the year ended June 30, 2022, MEDCO implemented GASB 87 related to the leasing of office buildings
and other facilities in which MEDCO receives rental income over the course of several years, as defined within
each agreement, in which MEDCO is the lessor. GASB 87 requires lessors to present a lease receivable and
deferred inflow of resources on the statements of net position. The lease receivable is measured at the present
value of lease payments expected to be received during the lease term. The deferred inflow of resources is
measured at the fair value of the lease receivable plus any payments received at or before commencement of
the lease term that relates to future periods. The present value of lease payments is measured by using the
discount rate implicit within each individual agreement or MEDCO’s incremental borrowing rate, as
determined by management. Interest income on the lease receivable is recognized on the straight-line basis
over the term of each lease. Under GASB 87, the lease receivable totaled $4,020,038 and $5,239,834 as of
June 30, 2022 and 2021, respectively. Interest income totaled $222,204 and $245,738 for the years ended June
30, 2022 and 2021, respectively, as reflected in the accompanying statements of revenues, expenses, and
changes in net position.

In April 2021, a tenant expressed their intent to exercise a purchase option with MEDCO, as stipulated within
their lease agreement, at a purchase price of approximately $765,000. The purchase option was subsequently
executed in July 2021. As of June 30, 2022, there is no lease receivable reflected within the accompanying
statements of net position related to this lease.

The weighted-average remaining lease term is 7.20 and 8.20 years as of June 30, 2022 and 2021, respectively,
and the weighted-average discount rate is 5.25% as of June 30, 2022 and 2021.

The following table presents future minimum lease principal and interest to be recognized during the years
ending June 30,:

Total Principal Interest

2023 $ 683,328 $ 483,807 $ 199,521
2024 683,327 509,826 173,500
2025 683,327 537,246 146,081
2026 666,900 549,532 117,368
2027 650,472 562,038 88,434
2028-2029 1,463,562 1,377,588 85,973

§ 43830915 § 4,020,038 $ 810,877
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6. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS

Right-of-use assets activity for the years ended June 30, 2022 and 2021 is summarized as follows:

Beginning Ending

2022 balance Additions Retirements balance
Buildings and improvements $45,280,290 $ - $ - $45,280,290
Less: accumulated amortization (2,585,133) (2,611,158) - (5,196,291)
Right-of-use assets, net $42,695,157 $ (2,611,158) $ - $40,083,999

Beginning Ending

2021 balance Additions Retirements balance
Buildings and improvements $45,280,290 $ - $ - $45,280,290
Less: accumulated amortization - (2,585,133) - (2,585.133)
Right-of-use assets, net $45,280,290 $(2,585.133) $ - $42.695,157

7. RIGHT-TO-USE BUILDINGS

Pursuant to GASB 60 and the service concession arrangements between MEDCO and certain student housing
projects of the University System of Maryland, CTU Foundation, and the City of Baltimore, the Projects have
recorded a right to use buildings asset on the accompanying statements of net position. Under GASB 60, any
costs of improvements made to the facilities during the term of the service concession arrangements increases
the right-to-use buildings asset. The right to use buildings assets are required to be amortized in a systematic
and rational manner. The Projects have amortized the right to use buildings assets using the straight-line method
over the lesser of the term of the lease or the useful lives of the underlying assets to which the Projects have
the right to use. The portion of the right to use buildings asset attributable to the undetlying buildings and
improvements is being amortized over a useful life of 17 to 39 years and 10 months using the straight-line
method, and the portion attributable to furnishings and equipment is being amortized over 3 to 10 years using
the straight-line method.
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7. RIGHT-TO-USE BUILDINGS - continued

Right to use building activity for the years ended

June 30, 2022 and 2021 is summarized as follows:

Beginning Sales and Ending
2022 balance Additions retirements balance
Buildings and improvements $ 442767155 $ 39,176,816 $(1,220251) $ 480,723,720
Furnishings and equipment 56,189,366 5,420,322 (2,325,267) 59,284 421
498,956,521 44,597,138 (3,545,518) 540,008,141
Less: accumulated amortization (193,526,707) (17,742,981) 2,853,605 (208,416,083)
Right to use buildings, net $ 305429814 $ 26854,157 $ (691,913) § 331,592,058
Beginning Sales and Ending
2021 balance Additions retirements balance
Buildings and improvements $ 393,940,140 § 49,173,038 $ (346,023) §  4427767,155
Furnishings and equipment 55,350,198 3,232,057 (2,392,889) 56,189,366
449,290,338 52,405,095 (2,738,912) 498,956,521
Less: accumulated amortization  (179,783,094) (16,150,087) 2,406,474 (193,526,707)
Right to use buildings, net $ 269507244 § 36255008 $ (332,438) $§ 305429814
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8. CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital assets activity for the years ended June 30, 2022 and 2021 is summarized as follows:

Beginning Sales and Ending
2022 balance Additions retirements balance
Buildings and improvements $194,236323 § 776,318 $ (480,565) $ 194,532,076
Furnishings and equipment 91,670,476 1,414,652 (1,048,559) 92,036,569
Construction in progress 381,098 (139,358) - 241,740
286,287,897 2,051,612 (1,529,124) 286,810,385
Less: accumulated depreciation (179,692,138) (8,299,313) 1,317,225 (186,674,226)
Net capital assets $106,595,759 $§ (6.247,701) § (211,899) $ 100,136,159
Beginning Sales and Ending
2021 balance Additions retireme nts balance
Buildings and improvements $194,131416 §$ 347833 § (242,926) $ 194,236,323
Furnishings and equipment 91,248,488 877,295 (455,307) 91,670,476
Construction in progress - 381,098 - 381,098
285,379,904 1,606,226 (698,233) 286,287,897
Less: accumulated depreciation (171,336,432) (9,017,181) 661,475 (179,692,138)

Net capital assets

9. OPERATING FACILITIES

Operating facilities in operation or development during the years ended June 30, 2022 and 2021 included the

following:

$114,043,472

$ (7410955 $  (36,758)

$ 106,595,759

Christa McAuliffe Student Housing at Bowie State University (Bowie), an apartment project located in
Prince George’s County, Maryland. The project accepted its first residents in September 2004.

Bowie Mixed Use Facility Student Housing at Bowie State University (Bowie Mixed Use), an apartment
project located in Prince George’s County, Maryland. The project was completed and opened in August
2021.

Baltimore City Garages (City Garages), three parking garages located in Baltimore, Maryland. The
project began operations in August 2018.

39



MARYLAND ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION

Notes to Financial Statements
For the Years Ended June 30, 2022 and 2021

9. OPERATING FACILITIES - continued

* CTU Foundation Student Housing at Capitol Technology University (CTU), an apartment project
located in Prince George’s County, Maryland. The project was completed and opened in August 2018.

e Chesapeake Bay Conference Center (CBCC), a hospitality project located in Cambridge, Maryland. The
project was completed and opened in August 2002.

¢ Edgewood Commons Student Housing at Frostburg State University (Frostburg), an apartment project
located in Garrett County, Maryland. The project was completed and opened in August 2003.

e Owings Mills Metro Centre Garage (Metro Centre), a parking garage located in Owings Mills, Maryland.
The project was completed and opened in December 2014.

®» Morgan View (MV) and Thurgood Marshall Hall (TMH) Student Housing at Morgan State University
(Morgan), an apartment project located in Baltimore City, Maryland. Morgan View was completed and
opened in August 2003. Construction of Thurgood Marshall Hall began in 2021 with total construction
costs as of June 30, 2022 of approximately $51,349,000. TMH was completed and opened in
August 2022.

e National Cybersecurity Center of Excellence (NCCoE), (formerly William Hanna Innovation Center),
an office/laboratory facility designed for use by biotechnology and computer technology companies
located in Montgomery County, Maryland. During the year ended June 30, 2015, the project ceased
operations and was repurposed for use by the National Institute of Standards and Technology (NIST).
The redevelopment was completed and re-opened in January 2016. The total costs of construction for
the repurposing of the building was approximately $12,969,000. The project was disposed of in August
2018 with a final distribution of remaining assets occurring in April 2021.

e Rockville Innovation Center (RIC), an office facility designed for use by technology companies located
in Montgomery County, Maryland. The project was completed and opened in June 2007. The project
was disposed of in August 2018 with a final distribution of remaining assets occurring in April 2021.

e University Park Phase [ and II at Salisbury University (Salisbury), an apartment project located in
Wicomico County, Maryland. University Park II was completed and opened in August 2004. In July
2012, MEDCO acquired University Park I.

e  West Village (Towson WV) and Millennium Hall (Towson MH) Student Housing at Towson University,
an apartment project located in Baltimore County, Maryland. West Village was completed and opened
in August 2008. In July 2012, MEDCO acquired Millennium Hall.

e Fayctte Square Student Housing at University of Maryland, Baltimore (UMAB), an apartment project
located in Baltimore City, Maryland. The project was completed and opened in August 2004.
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9. OPERATING FACILITIES — continued

e Walker Avenue Student Housing at University of Maryland, Baltimore County (UMBC), an apartment
project located in Baltimore County, Maryland. The first phase of the project was completed and opened
in August 2003. The second phase of the project was completed and opened in August 2004.

e The University of Maryland, College Park, Energy and Ultility Infrastructure Program (UMCP Energy),
a program under which MEDCO leases land, certain energy conversion facilities and steam, electricity
and chilled water delivery systems at the UMCP campus in Prince George’s County, Maryland, and
provides energy conversion, delivery and related services to UMCP. The Program began in August 1999.

e South Campus Commons and The Courtyards at University of Maryland, College Park (UMCP
Housing), an apartment project located in Prince George’s County, Maryland. The project consists of
seven student residential housing buildings known as University of Maryland, College Park South
Campus Commons and seven garden style apartments known as The Courtyards at University of
Maryland, College Park. MEDCO originally acquired only South Campus Commons Phase IT in July
2003, at which time development of the first of three building of that phase was substantially completed.
It was opened to residents in August 2003. Construction of two additional buildings in the South Campus
Commons Phase Il was completed and opened to residents in August 2004. In April 2006, MEDCO
acquired The Courtyards at the University of Maryland and South Campus Commons Phase 1. Tn August
2008 construction began on a seventh student residential housing building in South Campus Commons
which opened for occupancy in January 2010.

e University Village at Sheppard Pratt (University Village), an apartment project located in Baltimore
County, Maryland. The project was completed and opened in August 2002.

The operating facilities, with the exception of NCCoE which was leased to a single federal technology
agency, are managed for MEDCO by independent management companies that provide management,
administrative and other services pursuant to management agreements. The agreements generally provide
for base and incentive fees and reimbursement of certain costs incurred by the managers in connection with
the operation of the facilities.

Operating expenses of the operating facilities include fees to MEDCO (eliminated in consolidation) and
totaled $2,220,496 and $1,664,054, for the years ended June 30, 2022 and 2021, respectively. Net non-
operating expenses for the years ended June 30, 2022 and 2021 include interest expense related to debt
service of operating facilities totaling $36,908,326 and $35,678,189, respectively.

The operating facilities are considered segments of MEDCO for financial reporting purposes. Financial

statements of each facility in operation during the years ended June 30, 2022 and 2021 are included on the
following pages:
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Capital asseis
Buildings and improt ements (I8 =T 10 - - - . 132 6U5. 166 . B A - - . - . . . 249]uas (F28,521) 194 532076
Furnishings and equipment 2724 5 - + . 21.963 W65 . 4 . . . - . o 00 - 4743379 - 92 U36,569
- - - - . - - - - - = . - - = 38158 = e
T1AGE B - - - - Lt T J a2 v - - * - ASLAT DY - IRITA, 7 mas B
tew PLEALIT . = s " A a =N = = = " - = L1890 7T Alagsy 3
New (s Asjels 7550 258 - - . . T . T - . - - . . . 14126 446 [HTRE] 100 136 159
Taad i At ik k) Atiie Artrren i secut T Rrld s Tafatit Mimes s ior yiasY e HsoLsan (AT . EA 1) (i TE)
Toial Asscts s 57006 850 5 11579003 S 493596462 3 62356150 S__14.401 289 S 97554835 S__ 8501734 S 23918 535 S_107 763 090 S 1531307 S 33062032 S 15153099 S 1B 194996 5 15961305 ;] [T PR A 18400 e A (mware it
Delereg Qulllon of Resourees
Deiral a i - s . - . 3ernpes UL . . - s . s Lt = - £4ta 1
d ihelhom ol Nenawreny - LreT) : = = 2uages sy . = s = Pt s 2 (Era0o fhars -
Lowtiliem wad Xo braszs
Current Liabuliiey
Accounts payable and acerued openses L] 2 806 042 s 1140190 L] 550972 5 A5 L] 312657 5 3lnds4 g 365,020 * 201 029 * 6377501 1 ERIRl) I * 338079 * e 7382004 * 5526184 L] 367.339 5 (582127) § 30152188
Salcs tax pasable . . - . . $30,720 - . . . - - . . - - - sinmo
Related party payable 1582131 - 199 00U - . 11,000 - . - - ne - - - - - (10,856 531) -
Advancs 1137328 - . . . . . - - - - - . - - . - 3137328
Reserve deposits . - - - - - - - - - - - - LEL S - - - 8476 542
Accrued inlerest L 49 583 964 500 250313 163,004 56,961,581 Lnory 675,057 2,083 644 67,121 BB2625 1,244,394 s - 437,108 6.11029% sy 70,374,059
Aance deposils. - . . s N 2330165 - . . . . # - - F - - 2330165
Securny depoaiis . . . . . . , - e . . v v . 466,800 e .
Asciued yround 1eni . 1729020 . . . 135249 . I . . . . 8751057 . .
120878 . - - 30.889,017 - . - - - - . - - [LFLIR . .
Thondy wut s v ihle 32492| §35.000 - L - 670,000 e 310 Lt [UTEE- 1,300 C00 940,00 - 4920,000 1232351 (171 567)
i b p b - - - . - - . . - : = s . . . {3 )
Folal Current Lubibities T e 3773793 1708472 1,652 405 T Wraew 741 R wis LR 3926 762 5543 455 288247 2083371 15435 (UG e e e e TN
Noa-current Liabilive
Relatedl pany payable . . . . - (T . . . - . - . e . P .
Leasc brliy e . - . . 2wl i . . - - - . . - - - HeaAgi
= AR TR ALY SAgT e il e A e Mifhe iy inT e 18 Ve T Japeiny Zepn 1LSGLER 8L 1L L 1LY o]
= il TaRa 1Y [R50 R 11 T e Ty ITNT XL A Ted wre - TR 18 wat o TR LTATLY IELTIW ) = 11y s el [Py ey 31 P
Total Linbrhuss s 2445549 5 15104332 5 1589240 S 6S6MTTI S 12743086 5 319984565 5 11665271 S 52099951 5 118139257 S I9ITTSH S 4193460 S 2STMEIS S 169K4600 5 1536 4 (namoar % ES TN THI VRS S TP TR
Nicferred Inflow of Resources
Renly and [ collecled in advanee 3 Ba5.825 01550 12539] a3 489 32106 - 95 950 - 679,268 204,495 184,402 211,962 80,046 $16,976 97.641 - 7,008 655
Dt - = - - - = - 3 iy - L IALE S - AL+ 0 . - - A0S
Total Defared laflow of Resoureey 3845 ¥2S 0] 550 125.33) 49 489 32108 - 93,950 - 1061345 204,495 st 184 402 267,844 L) 516976 97 641 - 7593731
N Traidan.
Net Inv oetments i capilal assels 595923 5 536 184) (7,932 156§ (11.137073) T3S 97 1138 652 1583 14,726 953) (11 616 86S) 140 348 247} {2453 873) (S 812517) (12,915 486) {3408,313) - 134 B15,448) (11615461) (974,767) (303 933 664}
s . 2034435 5.575.967 7755963 #1026 - 1,620.04K Lo ae 24.908.739 2268508 £330 2307190 4.350.865 - 13.759.77C - . 79162232
Revtricted for capilal and othe purposes . a a . a a a . . - . a i 47703 - H - 47703
Unresiricled-Proiesis - . . . . (789675711 . . - . - . - - - (2 060 895y . {81,028 456,
AN s . . = s - = = N Y = N = = L 27350356

Lotal Net Postian s 20705076 8 (Umhny & (R B (VWNE 8 (e Sineime f (iesel § (et § preekstt & $ qrenymn § ddewde f  sowy  § s1m CLOAR  § (oI § 0BT § O




Statement ol Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Posilion
For the Year Ended June 30, 2022

MEDCO,
exchssive of Chpe rating Fisilities
Dperuting Bare Chy Temn e e Univenity
Eucilities Bawie Mixed Use Gamges cru cBCe Frostburg Metrn Cemtre Morgan Sellsbury WV & MB UMAR UMBC Energy Howming Village Eliminations Total
Operating Revenucs
Operatmg facililies ] = % 4655710 4 5196690 % 7315182 & 1369026 % 42265636 3 2369615 ¥ 2354573 3 7552508 % 7020450 B 022113 § 449933 % 5856321 8 19967864 5 32120638 3 4636150 % 8 155285,829
Lewe 545,256 . . » - . - - . - - - . - - . . 545,256
Cmuuting sad ks AnT2IY] - . - - - - - - a = . - - . = {2735 148 LATTTY
Tolal Dperaung Revenuzy 4617427 4.655.730 5,196,690 7.315,182 1,389,026 42,285.636 1965000 EELTES ) 7.592,508 7,021,850 8022113 4.498,933 5856321 19.987.464 32,120,838 4636,150 (2395,144) 157,508,712
Operuting Expenscy
Operatmg faciliues - 3413742 1.698,047 2883,654 554,978 31,253,372 1,084,528 408,551 5010604 4250218 2,254,803 2,797,532 19,987,964 19,689,838 2153,282 (2.220,496) 99,419,870
Compensation and begefits 1.888,712 - . . . . - - - - - - - - . . 1,888,712
Admunutrain ¢ and general 605,425 - . . - . . = . . . - . . - - w3azn
Theprpsiationd wail samst §70 50 ErTer] 1380799 13188 (TN 7482583 RSN T80 03968 131,138 1847008 il 3 oerans . 3,300 3463 L 1R ) TE8D10)
okl Cpursimg beperacs Lumgut Anren Az [y ate) [T M [RITE: ) [RITRLL (% kil SANTAIR 5 XY TR 19 5EY5ed 2upur e FRLIRI L) FETTTThk
Opcrating Income (Loss) 1,544,424 497,755 1957884 2712355 us.sm 3,569,321 626,387 1,023,462 369,170 1,324,534 1208419 1,960,815 (1ooy 7,128,738 514,965 122,358
Non-opeating Revepua and Expensey
Interest incame 303,331 3,749 16017 10204 1922 10054 2380 2,943 27.735 TS 66,027 3,480 5.765 11,024 157892 1,589 6,368 681,798
Intersel expense. (242.570) (59L.78T) (1.685.797) (2.988.952) H5.855) (13347.760) (506.108) (1337322) (4,705,614 (767,209 (1.503.975) (1019.229) 42619 - *312.315) (3260.153) 16368 G7,150.896)
Settlement incame - 160,949 - - - 110,000 - - 25,746 - - 156 - - - - - 296,451
Gum on cxtinguishmenl of menagement fe¢ payable - - - - - 61,034,190 - - - - - - - - - - - 61,034,190
Bond issuance cosls - - - - - 3 - - (290 387) - - - - - - - - (290,387}
sl ssnity 5000 - - - . 8LTH . . - {r24803} - L8 V) fEAATH) S ALY 25) ALTIR] =
Nt Ny L L5 (Ot 2] E-Ch ] Py B ) A453.97) ATAL N [ T JIEETSs, ) LS WE La81e3aT AT 8N (1 E35303) {481 3303 ey {4350 T4y amam™ - Ta0IN
Changes in Net Powition 1,614,185 70,670 28,104 (265,493) (459.510) 51,084,029 122659 @297 G.373.750) 306,177 199,606 174837 1,475,285 10924 2,835,492 @763212) 122358) 50,790,528
St Pisritin, b pmamg of yesr, o sentsted 31 a3 4% ATRAZIY (e 21751411 ANTES [11) b1 "Xl (e, X2 E1) O Iimnd] [l N, 5] ITRES TER) [LTRE ] L0800 TR 1O TET VS (LN ] MEYTY AL]] T3 ELE B ] TN TV M
Nt Fuasisn, cmal wf yoar L %) 7% 3 fidoltan; 4 (isaled) 8 (=S THITTRE. ) LABS9OT % (HAUIATH) 8 (bi6dSiS) 3 (B156.396) S (11439512 S (1B5365) S (9601278 % {10.R0A256) 3 LItELE I LM 3 (3055678) $ (15676356) S (1324784) S _ [(277.995039)
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skt of Cavh Fems
o e Vse Bandd b 80 3033

nen,
T
wperuting [ chy [ [ [
Tecilins Hosie Mixsd Use Garagan cru Frodbug  _Mstro Centro Morpes Sulisbury WY R MH UMAB umEC Esargy Homing Village Elimioations Total
sl Flows fran Operaling Activties
Cash recewad fram Jemses H 1 I - o | A I} - PO - PO < - - % - % - - o1 " e
ash seccwved rom canailling and nanagenienl fees N - = - . - H H . ¥ x - . . . 1 srony Eenren
Cashrecewed Fan giess - . - . . M. = B . . . - = . . . . "L
. . . P . . . . . . . . . 172m 83 . - - 13404
. - - Ty . . - . . . - - - . - A
. T 3l - LW . LI - RIE e R A 005,254 E 4987 - 0L
c: . . . A . . . 1Ty s . . : 5 - . . . ER TP
Costh o cqrati, experves - - . - - - . - - - . . - . - 0.469,18%
Cash pau fin expames of openiug pade {1aw s R LN G (e wty (e Y [T sizzim LRI FLLITR S il e Grugv  jitymwe s Arans w49
Net Crsh nud Cash Equvaleuts Provided by (Used w) Operntug Amuviney Mg AN LG w2 (LA Loy s (LAY 427626 Al L Yoy = aTLes e ] 64742,151
Cash Flaws Iraim Non=coprnd Fiomucicg, Adtevilia
Advanees - . = 4 - - - - . - . - - . . . (10811 232)
Advances frem (1o} related pary s . - B LS . - - . A . . . - 3 5 .
terert payiners em bands and ries pyable + . . . - - E . . v . - . F . - @nsin
N F : . - s 3 K £ i 3 s = : = = 3 feasy
Nel Crnh e Canh Equn alenta Provided by (Uscel i Nen-capitz] Financu Actvinies . : . E o8 . - B . . . . 5 . -
Cash Flow lrar Capitol and Related Finurcang Azt
Faymenta of camtziction expibre . . AN, . . . - . - - . - . : . = .
Rugh-10-10e buldusgs expendiues . 28 s e Tt - - e - (95028,762) e Hozso e man s [FIL T - 52550
Coatrustion, dovelopment and squpmen expendiires b - . . . (3838459, . - - . . - . . ] -
Praczeds fram sale af cautad pacels wres . . - p 10 - B - . . . . + : P -
Refiirg of bordh and uotes paysble . . . . - = - v (22,8%5,6%9) . . . . - . H =
Proecds fram mauane uf bands and noles gay oblc . : - . - v - . 2707071 . . » . . - - .
Bond unmme expendiiaen . . . . . 2 - . 290367 B . . . - - - -
Net haulisge of funch fn 1cplacement ul and pddions 1o urmushags and equrent $ . . . {162,101 . . . . . - - - .
Lesse puymas Tamr
hacreal paid [t 1 e e 1ongRa) g (528726 (11365 684) (5199371 iz joa; ] LA 400 (656330) - A 30 irmape g
=) i B e . St Ly - M T LIS I e £, anin IS e - s dupnoue (o
Net Croh wist Cash Equuvaleats Provided by (Used w) Cupital s Related Fuzsiisirg Acks ues [t £ ARG E0; (TR 5202 26%) 1 Lot [EESEh (1207526, (1765694 (a30021m) (4196,030) (3,545 040, (L551,464) (1537451 - uz263,01) (2255354) rass (101,054.184)
Cesh Flown fran Iveating Astrvities
Prircal paymenis cn loans recewable ] . . . g - - . . - . . . . - . fisawm 25000
Related panry recen able depann i 3 < . . . . . . . & A . (625133) - - : .
Rercrve depaars . - . - . . - . v . . - . 614546 - - . 614546
Frocecdn lram ehlemert . 16049 . . . 116,000 - . 346 - - 156 : . . . . 296,351
et e o) of dcpaaits wath bane tnurices = rentrcledd (IRt 4309312 1162086 WMAos) 30735% 1073y s ion 551 945 508,609 00 88N @6 6am 1885 9851 - Busn (403,600) - 39510994
Net pachrwes of i ruenty - . . . H : v ' f . . . . - - - (1 i
<M igag* 6 us Ay L =ve ace i L ke FEIT FRIRLLE [ L wvm yry
s trivy fumre et iz Lty At ey i yid Ay - N SeLips Ay e fany e i e F=Te Alws 433y s
Net Increase (Decreare] in Cash and Canh Bquvelents (41,127395) s239m7 1e2RR 246 503 3605 (19 31685 a7 FIREY 330383 112028y €2 232) 264064 - 15200 (61382 - .77 858)
£ ey slvre AT P . 15 el FEe] 1an e Wiy I LEdr] P soics v s Litem i . aiisan
o yum 3 prEal 4 inote § igtea & 3 i PP 4 esww 4 veatt & assen 8 imm b Ao ¥ iimem u A L Iwase 1 ewws % P S T
Rezaneiliatum of uperating mcaras (o) Lo ret cash and crah equivelers
P e by operylirg scta e
Upeisfioy wwim ([ | 3 (L | e 3 st 4 FACE N S T ) 3569321 4 66T S 10M4E2 S 1369170 S 13245M 5 163755 S 12419 5 IS60HIS S (HE 4 CiNte 3 slast 3 (mmwe 3 e
ecquvi e provuckd by operatuy acuvities
Deprecimticn nad sniortucstion e otz isane st s - 452943 658 700 902 560 1213134 1 ado5u 2165306 1035711 1097974 . ag023e e (52250 b
Pravinon o (recovery of} daubllil aecaunus st [t s x . w1 10750 261404 - 250 s9311 135139 51531 as14n . W ne . iAW
e vy
o ey - . . - . s . . (103566 - - . . . . = - g
Lease rocenvable 1219796 1210
R othen recenble (156,600 W e s @861 6 @nesn - 208y (56994} (86 6501 hzs ey 2o (1w A (42 dom i
Relsted pany 1ecervable (865,952 - . - . . . v . . . . v . . (R .
bventary . - v - - (1092 . - . . . F . . . - - [ELECS
Prepmid expeuses audl ciher aisels 3593 o) (@ 6s0; - 2620 - w6l 5774 0440 (52781 ) [ T same 037 - 14281
Accounts pryable nal ueerued expemes [Pab: oy Mg U6 630 aLeny 42464 450741 1287961 (952251 by 2H0l 156 (223 596) tizasen (AL 66
Salen ax payble a . . . . 5 . N . . v - . . . 3 e
Relaicd party poyeble 255,029 . : - . . . [y . . . . - . . . i2shoon .
Advanczs v Gy . = ] + . - . . . (583 - - . . %
Advarcr depeaits . - . . . e . . . . . . E 5 . W .
[—— . = F - - . B - el i f f H . 123700 5ol B
Arcrue pround rent . Lraps . - - . nEtamw . ] o1 . . (94841} . .
1 B (345 256) sk o o * . 162w - ok - 0 . (e (L TES [l . ERLTR, )
— g gg‘éEEEEEI T vieg e ] W Wwion 1 waw TS WL ) [ TR T T
Acened e experne an the Jease bnbilny 1 W - S Y P | ey A ¥ PN » 1 - - -8 PO L L - 3 s@s
Gain Uows) i ealex et aents of assets, pet . - . - - e - - . s ey - 8190
st desihipme, - 5 3 x F . . 2 : A F . p - £
Gaun an cxurgushment of mannpenend fee pyable . a . - : P » - . ’ . . . . ey
Retsement of bard premsum 54K - . . - - v . . . - . . . - TR
Amrtuzatian of lesse slinwaiee e - - . . - 5 . . . . . .
Amertization ol isue prsmiion o bonds . o sy . voug o] S £ - et T - I
Anextization of uvue discows on borcls . - o . o . . . . E * . - o
d willow of. T ST— v . ¥ : 3 e . . i I . . . . NEDs
of crvusa i s s mw s s L) n . . g isiat| ] - b 1]




Musmss ol it Pewitern
A of June 302021

e,
enahmny of oo simg Pl
operuting = Tomaen. M =]
Ain facilitiey Bowie d Ure ety cBCC Frostburg Melro Centre Margen Salnbury WY& MH UMAB UMBC Focrgy Howizg Village liminations Totsl
Currem Asets
Cash and cash equwalents 34373806 s AT - T mas & ELZR TR SR LTI E RTINS 1 T TUA R T T T i | . EEL RIS ‘ 45136423
Sharl-term im cotments 6406 545 . . - . : ¥ . . % . . . s . : « 6.406 545
Secunty deposns E . - . . 3 K . 1. = . . - d . TS . 210351
Deposits with bord Lrustees — restricted . (L3 anm ET il 5,620 089 625 649 Lt 5571081 ALY Teism L . w40 542 1397 483 . 20685853
Funds for replasament of and cidiuans o
furnashings and equipment - . . - - 413932 . - - - . . . " - . A13932
Luans rezenable, el 189.969 . . - 3 . . . . & - . 5 . . F (164.969) 25.000
Leasen reccu able ik . . . - ‘ . 3 3 H - ¥ . . . - 459 114
R and cther rezenvabler, ne ] (ST . nn 196927 380 . g e a=giv Bl 1 UTE ] L] e ke 5941554
Related party recewable E T . . = . . . . - - . =T . [LETTE =
Inlcrest rezcivable, net i EETH . [T+ " 5t - an s s b " 1Lo00 wan . Lnass s
I entury . - - . 57891 a - . - . = - . . . - wim
d {LI_1 (L) = ST M s = A o (=TT i Herd 1 A1 T (TS - EREThes
43310684 1301 g89 4198 a0 1 TN 1,050 947 L 1365761 arE i s FAN i3 Mt FIE .0 Tamam (10752 403) 91203275
S
Lorgelam n otments Tom . . - - - s . . . N N . - - 75600
T . Leia 10438 257 raa 1 ooz8C2 2056 241 T [RLE -] 4pain VT ini 2355459 . 18622 w80 . 125,042 552
Lozns tccpevsbde, nci 424990 . ) . . . . . ¥ y - . : 4 . E [y 75 000
e 4780720 . . p 3 . . . H ' . P 5 . . . . 4780720
Relnted parts recen sblc A518UTS . . = . . . = H . . . F H . - T -
Frepeet npemn o whar seni . 564 ‘ . « . i * . . e I [ - s - . [EIrEs
i - A - - EET a . . - a . « < ! M . prote
Rught-to-usc butldings. et of accumulated amortizalion . 7086397 Al Mk e BTV . 6571370 - 31562632 Fm et A LS ) Iy . LA - (866323 Wha2and
Coptsl assets
Buildings and umpravements 11,382,654 . . - ey - - f . . ¥ samnlis (728 521) 194236323
L L . . - 10 . : » F . BB . Addrim . 91670476
e L 7 < . - Sl = a 5 2 . a = i o
T . . B . THL B - 5 v . EET] . EEET 30} TR
oo A0 39b dag) s 2 - 3 0 M 13) - - - - - A G 53 - 4 1en akiy AL jiNdes g
“ageial Astets i ted . . . . 63435697 - A - ’ . - - 14,556 601 (6 103) Ipe3Es Ve
T Yo A LA ] AN LRSI AEATses AT LR AR Liaian P Mwan e ope 2 Aok ba i s JEoE T il
Tata] Az 8t N LR 1T MM § el HIrrmr 4 oiremses B e3Ee 3MWINT L Vcaek ¥ jesdiow 8 JOME V) fiRNeica 4 AeTLY W pokoesl 3 aartidom
ool (2etlhom of Kassron
et " . - N N . 2t e e - Ahias - s mw s 5 iasiin e 5 aEngy
o = e = = s T L0t s . jiang - s 2wy r: . Lz 3 [ToRir) . Amcdiy
Current Liabiliues
Accaunts payable nnd accrued expenses 2674819 8 b} iyese 4 e e R TP EC I | ks B AIEIM 4 AR § 159465 § 4MAW 5 WEme B ADT BEETR F Mimz § (665a20) B919270
Sales tax payable . . . . - iz v A . [ ¥ . - . . : . 05202
Related party payabie 9,702 989 . 120000 . . Er s . . . H E : . . LT .
Advanca 13,948,560 s 2526 630 . . . : - . . . i E : 3 F 3 16516085
Rearve deposis . . . . . * - . . . - LT 4 . . 7,461,596
Accrued mlzet neir CrEnY 252506 172257 56120125 1 (R oy s e FEFIE™Y wrin . R Y 15250m {18 67609213
Advance depotita . H £ F . 2441334 . P 2 = - . - 3 " . 241334
Secunity depusis . s 3 = 4 B . - . . . . . o i . 661,686
Azcrucd ground rem . . . e v . 619,884 . 1315953 . 5 . . LI . . 7483 Uds
Lase lability Mt Z . - . 449 471 . . . N . . ¥ i ey . 20679977
Bonds and noles payable Baqury 00 000 . e os e - T e 400 000 1265,000 1.735.n00 1.270.000 L - 2,655,000 [E21RT 5] (1 oy 65,188,495
Defeyel nd sern e fees payable 3 - p . 5 B gue . - . . s H 3 - - LT Tudeon
ot e Ly EE T Laseati 47941376 LEtnaat 783,545 221592 09% Lbn 2 (LS LT twean iman [EETER 12578 99y 16.6K6 524 iy A7
L —
Retalol parsy payshle . - . . 415665 . - . . - . . * . AT .
Leage bbbty Ak 22044784 e Maziasi
Bonds and noe pepsin Wi [ER=IE2"] 50126971 e [EETEE 132005231 LT AT [EEL 0 LTINS A dls 525 2413708 16025 447 . 121 904 453 17527 032 (=1 663910 653
Other bsbaacs i % - = . F ¥ - 5 - . : : s s z .
Tl e - EL= ] [F#-% -} S T 133 A3 LTy LU ALz gy 1 A TTILL:) FTPTTE) TRRIE TN a - BRI L [red sk e
Total L abdeny T 4 ninidaw MESSYY 5 66457757 13058470 8 376140738 8 13563306 % Wiemeas 4 jeNIGE 8 (neries ARAMSE  § TR 1 mined  § iTdmss CAMLI § menss  § Ousedn § ot
Dcfirral nflow of Resources
M el nen nstni i 154027 - 16220 i . wnl - $29.486 222485 A 12940 263,931 e 118 539 - Tanm
i oy yerm H s - . = R a i - - 144 wap 2 dpsty z S & = i)
Toea) Dk Infiom of R aFLen 184027 - e 32108 . amy . Vi ) L AT 27040 325,166 52330 L 115539 - 10
at Pamsm
Net i st w capual ayscta T (5493 464 (§346.349) (11,629 55K) 1102485 ([T Ty LI (78202 4d9) WM useaeny (12917071 W) < (37309 5421 . aran (323 647 539)
Ramranad e T - 2321063 5700 076 «S13381 84012 . [EL TR LIwne Ml (O VN 2033 938 /308 083 . 13418372 - - 120515930
Rastrictee for eapilal and uthr purposss . - . . s - - - - ' . . 6719 : ", = 35775
Unsstrcled-Proterty - H 2 F - . . - 2 : E - - v WERTE faa) - 1149 913 935)
L 200 1y a = . g % z 5 z . A A " . . . iaben sawtyim
Tolal Net Position 2100uRY) & ASTR 23Ty % Limdn AN R ] oS TP AT
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Futcment of Revomers. Expemaes sl Chenges i Net Pewtion
1
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MEDCO,
exclusive af

Opsrating Vacilitirs

[ iy Tamves e UMCP Lakversity
Bowie Mixed Use Garuges «ru chee Frostburg Meira Centre Morgan Salisbury WY & MH UMAB UMBC Eaergy Howing Village Eliminatioss Total
Operaling Revenucs
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MARYLAND ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION

Notes to Financial Statements
For the Years Ended June 30, 2022 and 2021

10. DEBT AND CAPITAL LEASE OBLIGATIONS

Bonds and notes payable are summarized as follows as of June 30,:

2022 2021
Revenue bonds payable $ 696,449,338 $  715399,002
Notes payable, including $4,307 in 2022 and
$37,161 in 2021 to State of Maryland Department of
Business and Economic Development (DBED) 13,667,306 13,700,160
Total $ 710,116,644 $ 729,099,162

The revenue bonds payable are secured by deeds of trust or mortgages on the related facilities and/or
assignments of the related notes receivable or leases and, in most cases, irrevocable letters of credit issued by
commercial banks. This debt matures at various dates through June 2058 and, as of June 30, 2022 and 2021,
bears interest at a weighted average effective rate of 4.59% and 4.56%, respectively.

The notes payable are generally secured by mortgages on the related properties and/or assignments of the
related notes receivable or leases. This debt matures at various dates through November 2032 and, as of June
30, 2022 and 2021, bears interest at a weighted average effective rate of 6.97% and 6.83%, respectively,
including an average effective rate of 5.43% and 5.25%, respectively, on variable rate notes of $9,000,000 for
the years then ended. The interest rates on the variable rate notes are primarily based on the Prime Rate.

Total interest on bonds and notes payable totaled $37,138,843 and $30,486,400 during the years ended June
30, 2022 and 2021, respectively.

Bonds and notes payable are summarized as follows as of June 30,:

2022 2021
MEDCQO debt obligations $ 7,015,834 $ 7,360,646
Operating facilities debt obligations 703,100,810 721,738,516
Total $ 710,116,644 $ 729,099,162

Under terms of the related loan agreements, MEDCO has no obligation for the bonds and notes payable beyond
the resources provided under the lease or loan with the party on whose behalf the debt was issued. Under terms
of the facilities’ loan agreements, holders of the operating facilities’ debt have no recourse to other assets of
MEDCO in the event that cash flows from the operation or sales of the facilities are not sufficient to service or
repay the debt.
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MARYLAND ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION

Notes to Financial Statements
For the Years Ended June 30, 2022 and 2021

10. DEBT AND CAPITAL LEASE OBLIGATIONS - continued

Future payments on the bonds and notes payable are due as follows as of June 30,:

Total Principal Interest

2023 102,873,795 72,999,872 29,873,923
2024 53,789,947 25,003,873 28,786,074
2025 53,753,023 26,173,215 27,579,808
2026 54,012,742 27,685,912 26,326,830
2027 53,716,805 28,717,268 24,999,537
2028-2032 283,441,714 183,590,121 99,851,593
2033-2037 167,308,946 106,876,071 60,432,875
2038-2042 102,606,649 60,209,501 42,397,148
2043-2047 87,126,851 57,336,525 29,790,326
2048-2052 62,555,834 43,095,000 19,460,834
2053-2057 55,655,750 47,630,000 8,025,750
2058 3,047,900 2,905,000 142,900

1,079,889,956 682,222358 397,667,598
Less: unamortized discount (1,609,442) (1,609,442) -
Plus: unamortized premium 29,503,728 29,503,728 -
Total $  1,107,784,242 $ 710,116,644 $ 397,667,598
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MARYLAND ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION

Notes to Financial Statements
For the Years Ended June 30, 2022 and 2021

10. DEBT AND CAPITAL LEASE OBLIGATIONS - continued

Activity in debt for the years ended June 30, 2022 and 2021 is summarized as follows:

Balance June 30, 2020

Amortization of issue discount
Amortization of issue premium
Additions

Principal payments/reductions

Balance June 30, 2021

Amortization of issue discount
Amortization of issue premium
Retirement of bond premium
Refundings of bonds and notes payable
Additions

Principal payments/reductions

Balance June 30, 2022

Bonds Notes
payable payable
$ 648,511,117 $ 13,778,650
200,638 -
(2,781.464) -
84,322,721 -
(14.854.010) (78,490)
715,399,002 13,700,160
195,903 -
(2,775,444) -
(516,437) -
(23,875,699) -
22,707,071 -
(14,685,058) (32,854)
$ 696,449,338 $ 13,667,306
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MARYLAND ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION

Notes to Financial Statements
For the Years Ended June 30, 2022 and 2021

11. CONDUIT DEBT

Under terms of the related loan agreements, MEDCO has no obligation for the conduit debt obligations beyond
the resources provided under the lease or loan with the party on whose behalf the debt was issued. Activity in
conduit debt excluded from the accompanying financial statements for the years ended June 30, 2022 and 2021
is summarized as follows:

Balance June 30, 2020 $ 1,791,407,080
Additions 526,907,000
Principal payments/reductions (289,181,195)

Balance June 30, 2021 2,029,132,885
Additions 740,545,000
Principal payments/reductions (450,348,660)

Balance June 30, 2022 $ 2,319,329,225

During the year ended June 30, 2022, MEDCO issued bonds on the behalf of the East Baltimore Development,
Inc., $69,990,000, in order to finance costs of the acquisition, construction, and capital asset improvements of
facilities located in Baltimore City, Maryland, Maryland Department of Transportation, $643,455,000 in order
to finance the costs of constructing the Purple Line project in Baltimore City, Maryland, and the Catholic
Relief Services, $19,555,000, to refinance the costs of issuance, renovations and capital replacements and
improvements of the Project by refunding the previously issued Seties 2006 bonds.

During the year ended June 30, 2021, MEDCO issued bonds on the behalf of Port Covington, $137,485,000,
in order to finance costs of the acquisition, construction, furnishing, and equipping of facilities located in
Baltimore City, Maryland, SSA Baltimore Holdings, LLC, $265,985,000, in order to finance or refinance the
acquisition and/or improvement of the Social Security Administration building located in Baltimore City,
Maryland, and the Maryland Public Health Laboratory Project, $123,437,000, to refinance the costs of
issuance, renovations and capital replacements and improvements of the Project by refunding the previously
issued Series 2011 bonds.
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MARYLAND ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION

Notes to Financial Statements
For the Years Ended June 30, 2022 and 2021

12, COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
Leases

During the year ended June 30, 2022, MEDCO implemented GASB 87, which requires both capital and
operating leases to be presented on the statement of net position as a amortizable right-of-use asset and a
liability to make lease payments. The right-of-use-asset represents MEDCO?s right to use an underlying asset
for the lease term and lease liabilities represent MEDCO’s obligation to make lease payments per the terms of
the lease agreement. The lease liability is measured at the present value of payments expected to be made
during the lease term, including variable payments that depend on an index or a rate (less any lease incentives).
The lease asset is measured at the amount of the initial measurement of the lease liability, plus any payments
made to the lessor at or before the commencement of the lease term and certain direct costs and is amortized
over the lease term. The lease liability is measured by using the MEDCO?’s estimated incremental borrowing
rate, as determined by management, in determining the present value of the lease payments. The amortization
of the discount on the lease liability is reported as interest expense each period. MEDCO also considered any
lease terms that included options to extend or terminate the lease, residual value guarantees, restrictive
covenants and lease incentives when valuing the right-of-use assets. Service concession arrangements are
specifically excluded from GASB 87. MEDCO, as well as University Village and CBCC, were impacted by
the adoption of GASB 87 ( see below). All other leases noted below at the specific project level were not
impacted by the adoption of GASB 87, due to the nature of the service concession arrangements or immaterial
amount of future ground lease payments.

Bowie

The land underlying Bowie is leased from the State of Maryland on behalf of Bowie State University (BSU)
under a non-cancellable operating lease expiring on the earlier to occur of June 1, 2043 or the date on which
the bonds have been fully repaid. Rent payable under the lease is equal to “net revenues,” as defined. Payment
of the rent is subject to the project meeting a coverage ratio and is subordinated to all payments required under
the bonds payable and related trust indenture. Effective July 1, 2007, MEDCO entered into a Memorandum of
Understanding with BSU that includes a cash basis calculation of ground rent expense and an evaluation of
total ground rent due and accrued since the inception of the project. Payments of ground rent are limited to the
amount of cash available in the surplus fund as of June 30 each year. Accrued ground rent will exceed ground
rent expense to the extent that cumulative additions to ground rent expense are greater than the amount of cash
available in the surplus fund for ground rent payments. Accrued ground rent will be reduced for ground rent
payments and to the extent that negative ground rent expense can be credited against past due ground rent
payments. Cumulative negative ground rent expense in excess of ground rent may be deducted against ground
rent due and payable for the succeeding year and shall not be refundable. Ground rent expense was $1,749,020
and $0 for the years ended June 30, 2022 and 2021, respectively. Ground rent payments from the surplus fund
totaled $0 during the years ended June 30, 2022 and 2021. Accrued ground rent was $1,749,020 and $0 as of
June 30, 2022 and 2021, respectively.
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MARYLAND ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION

Notes to Financial Statements
For the Years Ended June 30, 2022 and 2021

12. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES - continued
Leases — continued
Bowie — continued

The lease provides various conditions and restrictions on the use, operation and maintenance of the project
and provides the State of Maryland, on behalf of Bowie State University, an option to purchase the project
improvements for a price of $1 plus the outstanding balance of the bonds payable (or other permitted debt)
at any time during the lease term. Title to the project improvements will revert to the University System of
Maryland upon termination of the lease.

Bowie Mixed Use

The land underlying the Project is leased from the State of Maryland on behalf of Bowie State University
(BSU) under a non-cancelable operating lease expiring on the earlier to occur of February 25, 2065 or the date
on which the bonds have been fully repaid. Annual rent is equal to 100% of “net available cash flow” released
during each lease year, as defined in the trust indenture. Payment of the rent is subordinated to all payments
required under the bonds payable and related trust indenture. Ground rent expense was $0 for the years ended
June 30, 2022 and 2021.

The lease provides various conditions and restrictions on the use, operation and maintenance of the Project and
provides the University System of Maryland, on behalf of BSU, an option to purchase the Project improvements
for a price of $1 plus the outstanding balance of the bonds payable (or other permitted debt) at any time during
the lease term. Title to the Project improvements will revert to the University System of Maryland upon
termination of the lease.

City Garages

In July 2018, MEDCO entered into an operating agteement with the City of Baltimore to lease three parking
garages, terminating at the earlier of the 50" anniversary of closing or the date on which the Series 2018 bonds
are fully repaid. From on and after the commencement of the lease, on each release date, as defined in the trust
indenture, MEDCO shall pay to the City of Baltimore rent in the amount of a distributable portion of the Surplus
Fund, as defined in the trust indenture (Additional Rent). If on any release date funds are not eligible, under
the terms of the trust indenture, to distribute the Additional Rent, the amounts allocable will be held for the
account of the City of the Baltimore. The Additional Rent Expense was $0 for both the years ended June 30,
2022 and 2021.
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MARYLAND ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION

Notes to Financial Statements
For the Years Ended June 30, 2022 and 2021

12. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES - continued
Leases — continued
CTU

The land underlying CTU is subleased from the CTU Foundation under a non-cancelable sublease expiring
on July 14, 2067. Annual rent is equal to "net available cash flow," as defined, less certain defined amounts.
Payment of the rent is subordinated to all payments required under the bonds payable and related trust
indenture. Ground rent expense was $0 for the years ended June 30, 2022 and 2021. Accrued ground rent
totaled $0 as of June 30, 2022 and 2021.

The sublease provides various conditions and restrictions on the use, operation and maintenance of the
project and provides the CTU Foundation, on behalf of CTU, an option to purchase the project improvements
for a price of the principal balance then outstanding of all sums secured by any leasehold mortgage in effect,
plus any premium payable on such indebtedness, plus all interest accrued or to accrue on such indebtedness
through the date of payment of such indebtedness, plus any other charges due and payable under the bond
documents at any time during the sublease term. Title to the project improvements will revert to CTU
Foundation upon termination of the sublease.

CBCC

The land underlying CBCC is leased from Chesapeake Resort, LLC under a non-cancellable operating lease
expiring on November 30, 2036 or on the termination date, as defined. Rent under the lease totaled $40,000
per year until opening of the project on August 29, 2002. Thereafter, the annual rent is based on the fair market
value of the land, as defined, and is subject to increase on August 29 of each year by the greater of 3% or 50%
of the amount by which the Consumer Price Index increased during the year. The annual rent is subject to
adjustments at the end of the fifth operating year of the project and at five-year intervals thereafter based on
changes in the appraised fair market value of the land; however, the adjusted annual rent cannot be less than
103% of the rent in the preceding year. Payment of the rent is subordinated to all payments required under the
project’s series 2006 bonds payable and related trust indenture. Accrued and unpaid ground rent bears interest
at 7% annually.

The Project also has various noncancelable operating lease agreements for office equipment with expiration
dates through October 2026.

During the year ended June 30, 2022, the Project implemented GASB 87. Lease payments due totaled
$1,973,342 and $1,917,470 for the years ended June 30, 2022 and 2021, respectively. Cumulative accrued lease
payments included in the current portion of lease liability in the accompanying statements of net position as of
June 30, 2022 and 2021 totaled $30,889,017 and $28,949,471, respectively, as payment of the ground rent is
subordinate to all payments required under the bonds payable and related trust indenture. Future minimum rent
payments for fiscal year 2023 include the accrued but unpaid rents for prior years of approximately $28,897,000.
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MARYLAND ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION

Notes to Financial Statements
For the Years Ended June 30, 2022 and 2021

12. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES - continued

Leases — continued

CBCC - continued

Interest expense on accrued lease payments totaled $1,961,404 and $1,828,057, for the years ended June 30,
2022 and 2021, respectively, and is recorded in interest expense on the accompanying statements of revenues,
expenses and changes in net position. Interest expense on the lease liability totaled $1,222,413 and $1,257,104
for the years ended June 30, 2022 and 2021, respectively, and is recorded in interest expense on the
accompanying statements of revenues, expenses and changes in net position. Accrued interest on accrued lease
payments totaled $18,237,258 and $16,275,854 as of June 30, 2022 and 2021, respectively, and is recorded in
current liabilities on the accompanying statements of net position.

Cash paid for amounts included in the measurement of the lease liability totaled $78,251 and $77,578 for the
years ended June 30, 2022 and 2021, respectively. No cash payments were made for ground rent during the
years ended June 30, 2022 and 2021. Any cash payments received for ground rent are first applied to accrued
interest and then to the amount of the accrued lease payments. The weighted average remaining lease term of
the leases is 14.4 years and 15.3 years as of June 30, 2022 and 2021, respectively. The weighted average
discount rate of the leases is 5.24% as of June 30, 2022 and 2021, respectively.

Frostburg

The land underlying Frostburg is leased from the State of Maryland under a non-cancellable operating lease
expiring on June 17, 2042. Annual rent is equal to "net revenues," as defined, less certain defined amounts.
Payment of the rent is subordinated to all payments required under the bonds payable and related trust
indenture. Effective July 1, 2007, MEDCO entered into a Memorandum of Understanding with Frostburg State
University that includes a cash basis calculation of ground rent expense and an evaluation of total ground rent
due and accrued since the inception of the project. Payments of ground rent are limited to the amount of cash
available in the surplus fund as of June 30 each year. Accrued ground rent will exceed ground rent expense to
the extent that cumulative additions to ground rent expense are greater than the amount of cash available in the
surplus fund for ground rent payments. Accrued ground rent will be reduced for ground rent payments and to
the extent that negative ground rent expense can be credited against past due ground rent payments. Cumulative
negative ground rent expense in excess of ground rent may be deducted against ground rent due and payable
for the succeeding year and shall not be refundable. Ground rent expense totaled ($304,635) and ($6,211) for
the years ended June 30, 2022 and 2021, respectively. Ground rent payments from the surplus fund totaled $0
during the years ended June 30, 2022 and 2021. Accrued ground rent totaled $335,249 and $639,884 as of June
30, 2022 and 2021, respectively.

The lease provides various conditions and restrictions on the use, operation and maintenance of the project
and provides the State of Maryland, on behalf of Frostburg State University, an option to purchase the project
improvements for a price of $1 plus the outstanding balance of the bonds payable (or other permitted debt)
at any time during the lease term. Title to the project improvements will revert to the University System of
Maryland upon termination of the lease.
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Leases — continued

Metro Centre

The land underlying Metro Centre is sub-leased from Metro Centre Garage 11, Ltd. under a non-cancellable
operating lease expiring on April 30, 2054. The annual rent under this lease is $10.

Morgan

The land underlying the Project is leased from the State of Maryland under a non-cancellable operating lease,
as most recently amended, effective December 1, 2020, expiring on the earlier to occur of (ii) July 1, 2061 or
(ii) the date on which the bonds have been fully repaid. Rent payable under the lease is equal to “net revenues,”
as defined in the lease. Payment of the rent is subordinated to all payments required under the bonds payable
and related trust indenture. Payments toward ground rent are limited to the amount of cash available in the
surplus fund as of June 30 of each year. Accrued ground rent will exceed ground rent expense to the extent that
cumulative additions to ground rent expense are greater than the amount of cash available in the surplus fund
for ground rent payments. Accrued ground rent will be reduced for ground rent payments and to the extent that
negative ground rent expense can be credited against past due ground rent payments. Cumulative negative
ground rent expense in excess of accrued ground rent may be deducted against ground rent due and payable
for the succeeding year and shall not be refundable. Ground rent expense totaled $1,476,651 and ($384,863)
during the years ended June 30, 2022 and 2021, respectively. Ground rent payments from the surplus fund
totaled $0 during the years ended June 30, 2022 and 2021. Accrued ground rent totaled $2,371,839 and
$895,188 as of June 30, 2022 and 2021, respectively.

The lease provides various conditions and restrictions on the use, operation and maintenance of the project
and provides the State of Maryland, on behalf of Morgan State University, an option to purchase the project
improvements for a price of $1 plus the outstanding balance of the bonds payable (or other permitted debt)
at any time during the lease term. Title to the project improvements will revert to Morgan State University
upon termination of the lease.

Salisbury

Pursuant to the consolidated, amended and restated ground lease agreement entered into in July 2012, the land
underlying Salisbury is leased from the State of Maryland on behalf of Salisbury University under a non-
cancellable operating lease expiring the earlier of June 25, 2043 or the date on which all of the bonds are fully
repaid. Rent payable under the lease is equal to “net revenues,” as defined. Payment of the rent is subordinated
to all payments required under the bonds payable and related trust indenture. Effective July 1, 2007, MEDCO
entered into a Memorandum of Understanding with Salisbury University, that includes a cash basis calculation
of ground rent expense and an evaluation of total ground rent due and accrued since the inception of the project.
Payments of ground rent are limited to the amount of cash available in the surplus fund as of June 30 each
year. Accrued ground rent will exceed ground rent expense to the extent that cumulative additions to ground
rent expense are greater than the amount of cash available in the surplus fund for ground rent payments.
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Leases — continued

Salisbury — continued

Accrued ground rent will be reduced for ground rent payments and to the extent that negative ground rent
expense can be credited against past due ground rent payments. Cumulative negative ground rent expense in
excess of accrued ground rent may be deducted against ground rent due and payable for the succeeding year
and shall not be refundable.

Ground rent expense totaled $1,167,944 and $1,315,953 during the years ended June 30, 2022 and 2021,
respectively. Ground rent payments from the surplus fund totaled $766,160 and $0 during the years ended
June 30, 2022 and 2021, respectively. Accrued ground rent totaled $1,717,737 and $1,315,953 as of June 30,
2022 and 2021, respectively.

The lease provides various conditions and restrictions on the use, operations and maintenance of the project
and provides the University System of Maryland on behalf of Salisbury University an option to purchase the
project improvements for a price of $1 plus the outstanding balance of the bonds payable (or other permitted
debt) at any time during the lease term. Title to the project improvements will revert to the University System
of Maryland upon termination of the lease.

Towson WV & MH

The land underlying Towson WV is leased from the State of Maryland under a non-cancellable operating lease,
as consolidated, amended and restated on June 6, 2012, expiring the earlier of March 27, 2047 or the date on
which the bonds have been fully repaid. The annual rent under the lease for the 2007 lease parcel (West Village
Student Housing) is $1. At closing for the 2007 bonds, a leasehold payment of $1,750,000 was made to Towson
University for the leasehold interest during the term of the ground lease for the 2007 lease parcel. This payment
is being amortized to ground rent expense over the term of the bonds. Ground rent amortization expense was
$54,545 for each of the years ended June 30,2021 and 2020. The annual rent under the lease for the 1999 lease
parcel (Millennium Hall Student Housing) is equal to “net revenues” from the Millennium Hall facility, as
defined. Ground rent expense for the 1999 lease parcel was $0 for the years ended June 30, 2022 and 2021.

UMAB

The land underlying UMAB is leased from the State of Maryland on behalf of University of Maryland,
Baltimore under a non-cancellable operating lease expiring the earlier of February 12, 2043 or the date on
which bonds have been fully repaid. Rent payable under the lease is equal to “net revenues,” as defined.
Payment of the rent is subordinated to all payments required under the bonds payable and related trust
indenture. Effective July 1, 2007, MEDCO entered into a Memorandum of Understanding with the University
of Maryland, Baltimore. The terms of the Memorandum of Understanding include a cash basis calculation of
ground rent expense and an evaluation of total ground rent due and accrued since the inception of the project.
No ground rent was due for the years ended June 30, 2022 and 2021.
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Leases — continued
UMAB - continued

The lease provides various conditions and restrictions on the use, operations and maintenance of the project
and provides the State of Maryland, on behalf of University of Maryland, Baltimore, an option to purchase the
Project improvements for a price of $1 plus the outstanding balance of the bonds payable (or other permitted
debt) at any time during the lease term. Title to the Project improvements will revert to the University System
of Maryland upon termination of the lease.

UMBC

The land underlying UMBC is leased from the State of Maryland under a non-cancellable operating lease
expiring on the earlier of June 5, 2042 or the date on which the bonds have been fully repaid. Real estate taxes,
insurance and maintenance expenses are obligations of the Project. The Project is exempt from real estate taxes
under Section 10-129 of the Economic Development Article of the Annotated Code of Maryland. The annual
rent under the lease is $1.

The lease provides various conditions and restrictions on the use, operations and maintenance of the project
and provides the State of Maryland, on behalf of University of Maryland, Baltimore County, an option to
purchase the operating facility improvements for a price of $1 plus the outstanding balance of the bonds payable
(or other permitted debt) at any time during the lease term. Title to the operating facility improvements will
revert to the University System of Maryland upon termination of the ground lease.

UMCP Energy

MEDCO leases the facility that houses the energy and utility infrastructure at the University of Maryland and
the related land from the University System of Maryland under an operating lease expiring in 2029. The lease
provides for annual rent of $100.

UMCP Housing

The land underlying UMCP Housing is leased from the State of Maryland under a non-cancellable operating
lease expiring July 31, 2043. Annual rent is defined as “net revenues” less certain amounts, including, among
other items, debt service on the bonds. Payment of the rent is subordinated to all payments required under the
bonds payable and related trust indenture. Effective July 1, 2007, MEDCO entered into a Memorandum of
Understanding with the University of Maryland, College Park that includes a cash basis calculation of ground
rent expense and an evaluation of total ground rent due and accrued since the inception of the project. Ground
rent expense totaled $4,361,954 and ($209,662) for the years ended June 30, 2022 and 2021, respectively.
Accrued ground rent totaled $8,793,057 and $4,431,103 as of June 30, 2022 and 2021, respectively. Payments
toward ground rent are limited to the amount of cash available in the surplus fund as of June 30 of each year.
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Leases — continued
UMCP Housing — continued

Accrued ground rent will exceed ground rent expense to the extent that cumulative additions to right to use
buildings exceed cumulative draws made from the renewal and replacement fund. Accrued ground rent will be
reduced for ground rent payments and to the extent that negative ground rent expense can be credited against
past due ground rent payments. Cumulative negative ground rent expense in excess of accrued ground rent may
be deducted against ground rent due and payable for the succeeding year and shall not be refundable.
Additionally, at closing for the 2006 bonds, a leasehold payment of $680,000 was made to the University for
the leasehold interest during the term of the ground lease for the 2006 lease parcel. This payment is being
amortized to ground rent expense over the term of the bonds and totaled $17,934 for each of the years ended
June 30, 2022 and 2021.

The lease provides various conditions and restrictions on the use, operation and maintenance of the project and
provides the State of Maryland, on behalf of University of Maryland, College Park an option to purchase the
project’s improvements for a price of $1 plus the outstanding balance of the bonds payable (or other permitted
debt) at any time during the lease term. Title to the project improvements will revert to the University System
of Maryland, upon termination of the lease.

University Village

The land underlying University Village is leased from Sheppard Pratt Health System, Inc. (SPHSI) under a
non-cancellable operating lease expiring on June 30, 2041. Rent payable under the lease totaled $885,500 in
the initial lease year (which commenced July 1, 2001), and increases by 3% each lease year thereafter. Payment
of the rent is subordinated to all payments required under the project’s bonds payable and related trust
indenture. Unpaid ground rent for the years ended June 30, 2008 through 2021 bears interest at 12.65% annually
beginning 90 days after the end of the related lease year. Title to the operating facility improvements will revert
to SPHSI upon termination of the lease.

During the year ended June 30, 2022, the Project implemented GASB 87. Lease payments due totaled
$1,599,312 and $1,552,730 for the years ended June 30, 2022 and 2021, respectively. Cumulative accrued lease
payments included in the current portion of lease liability in the accompanying statements of net position as of
June 30, 2022 and 2021 totaled $13,261,599 and $11,614,308, respectively, as the payment of the rent is
subordinate to all payments required under the bonds payable and related trust indenture. Future minimum rent
payments for fiscal year 2023 include the accrued but unpaid rents for prior years of approximately
$14,464,000.
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Leases — continued
University Village — continued

Interest expense on accrued lease payments totaled $1,171,443 and $1,070,477, for the years ended June 30,
2022 and 2021, respectively, and is recorded in interest expense on the accompanying statements of revenues,
expenses and changes in net position. Interest expense on the lease liability totaled $1,260,499 and $1,276,633
for the years ended June 30, 2022 and 2021, respectively, and is recorded in interest expense on the
accompanying statements of revenues, expenses and changes in net position. Accrued interest on accrued lease
payments totaled $2,954,517 and $2,537,132 as of June 30, 2022 and 2021, respectively, and is recorded in
current liabilities on the accompanying statements of net position.

Cash paid for amounts included in the measurement of the lease liability totaled $0 for the years ended June
30, 2022 and 2021, respectively. Cash payments are first applied to accrued interest and then to the amount of
the accrued lease payments. The weighted average remaining lease term of the lease is 19 years and 20 years
as of June 30, 2022 and 2021, respectively. The weighted average discount rate of the lease is 5.0% as of June
30, 2022 and 2021, respectively.

Other Leasing Activities

MEDCO leased office space under a lease agreement which was classified as an operating lease and expired
in August 2020. Effective August 15, 2020, MEDCO entered into a new lease agreement for office space that
expires in April 2029.

During the year ended June 30, 2022, MEDCO implemented GASB 87. Interest expense on the lease liability
totaled $12,117 and $11,358 for the years ended June 30, 2022 and 2021, respectively, and is recorded in
interest expense on the accompanying statements of revenues, expenses, and changes in net position. Cash
paid for amounts included in the measurement of the lease liability totaled $128,315 and $21,464 for the years
ended June 30, 2022 and 2021, respectively. The weighted-average remaining lease term is 6.8 years and 7.8
years as of June 30, 2022 and 2021, respectively, and the weighted-average discount rate of the lease is 2.89%
as of June 30, 2022 and 2021.
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Future Minimum Lease Payments

Future minimum rent under these leases, excluding MEDCO, CBCC and University Village, are due as follows
as of June 30,:

2023 $ 14,528,048
2024 12
2025 12
2026 12
2027 12
2028-2032 60
2033-2037 60
2038-2042 60
2043-2047 55
2048-2052 51
2053-2054 30
Total $ 14528412

Minimum rent payable during the year ending June 30, 2023 includes accrued but unpaid rents for prior years
of approximately $14,528,000.

The following table presents future minimum lease principal and interest due for MEDCO, CBCC and UV
during the years ending June 30,:

Total Principal Interest
2023 $ 49,300,314 $ 44271494 $ 5,028,821
2024 3,859,177 1,428,029 2,431,148
2025 3,959,296 1,596,626 2,362,669
2026 4,077,278 1,791,846 2,285,433
2027 4,196,933 1,998,566 2,198,367
2028-2032 21,267,267 13,062,129 8,205,138
2033-2037 16,486,558 11,218,273 5,268,285
2038-2042 4,788,666 3,552,749 1,235,917

$ 107,935,488 $ 78919,711 $ 29015777

Minimum rent payable during the year ending June 30, 2023 includes accrued but unpaid rents for prior years
of approximately $43,361,000.
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University System Operating Reserve

In accordance with the Ground Lease Agreement, a Memorandum of Understanding effective July 2, 2003,
and an Amended and Restated Memorandum of Understanding effective April 2, 2007, the Lessee (MEDCO)
shall create, hold and maintain a single fund for all Projects, referred to in each Ground Lease as the operating
reserve fund to be held and used in accordance with each Ground Lease and Memorandum.

From monies which otherwise would be rent, MEDCO is authorized to make, on behalf of the projects, annual
deposits to the operating reserve fund on or before November 30 of each year in the amount of $20,000 for
each of the Bowie State University, Salisbury University and the University of Maryland, Baltimore projects,
and commencing in November 2009, $20,000 for the Towson University project, and commencing in
November 2011, $40,000 for the University of Maryland, College Park project; provided however, if the
deposit of the full amount would cause the operating reserve fund to exceed the maximum amount per the
Amended and Restated Memorandum of Understanding, the amount deposited under each ground lease shall
be reduced proportionately.

As of June 30, 2022 and 2021, no deposits in lieu of ground rent have been made by MEDCO on behalf of the
UMARB project to the operating reserve fund due to the fact that the project, since inception, has not incurred
ground rent expense. As of June 30, 2022 and 2021 no deposit has been made by MEDCO on behalf of UMCP
Housing, Salisbury, Towson WV and MH, and Bowie.

If any of the projects’ revenues are not sufficient to meet permitted expenses as defined by the Memorandum
of Understanding and the Amended and Restated Memorandum of Understanding, the project can draw funds
that they deposited in the operating reserve fund. When these funds are not sufficient, the operating reserve
fund and MEDCO will advance matching funds to the respective project, which bear interest at ten percent.

Litigation
Various lawsuits and other claims occur in the normal course of business and are pending against MEDCO and

its projects. Management, after consultation with legal counsel, is of the opinion that the lawsuits and other
claims, when resolved, will not have a material effect on the accompanying financial statements.
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CBCC has an accumulated negative net position of $218,920,000 and its current liabilities exceed its current
assets by $160,150,000 at June 30, 2022. In addition, CBCC incurred operating losses of approximately
$9,332,000 during the year ended June 30, 2021, and was directly impacted by COVID-19.

Pursuant to the third amendment of the restated and amended forbearance agreement effective July 1, 2022,
the forbearance agreement effective May 1, 2014 was extended to December 31, 2022. The agreement, to the
extent there is no event of default or forbearance termination event as defined, provides for a partial deferral
of interest and principal payments owed under the bonds. During the forbearance period, no payments of
interest are to be made from the debt service reserve fund unless directed by the bondholders. Upon expiration
of the forbearance period, the deficiency between the interest and principal payments required to be made
under the terms of the trust indenture and the amount available to be paid from funds deposited in the debt
service trust accounts during the forbearance period shall be immediately due and payable. Effective
September 1, 2021, MEDCO and Hyatt Corporation (HC) agreed to a waiver of deferred fees pursuant to a
new hotel services agreement between MEDCO and HC.Under the terms of the letter agreement, HC agreed
to forever waive any and all deferred fees, including any and all interest accrued thereon, the total of which the
parties agreed was $61,034,190, to which HC was entitled to under the management agreement. This amount
has been recorded as a gain on extinguishment of management fee payable in non-operating revenues in the
accompanying statements of revenues, expenses and changes in net position for the year ended June 30, 2022.

Management believes the projected future operating results of CBCC will provide CBCC with adequate cash
flow to meet its operating needs; however, CBCC will not be able to make the current principal and interest
payments on the bonds, which includes missed principal payments from December 2021, December 2020,
December 2019, December 2018, December 2017, December 2016, December 2015, December 2014 and
December 2013 should the restated and amended forbearance agreement not be extended past its current
expiration date of December 31, 2022. These factors create significant doubt about CBCC’s ability to continue
as a going concern.

The ability of CBCC to continue as a going concern is dependent upon a resolution with the bondholders

regarding the outstanding bond principal payments. The financial statements do not include any adjustments
that might be necessary if CBCC is unable to continue as a going concern.
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